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ITEM NO. 3(1): AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECTS (CHAPTER 201H, HAWAII
REVISED STATUTES) (WAIKAPU GARDENS, PHASE II) (CC 13-36)
CHAIR CARROLL: .. . (gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting of September 12, 2013 will come to
order. First of all, may I please request that anybody has any cell phones or anything else that
makes noise, please disconnect it, turn it off. I'm Councilman Robert Carroll, Chair of the Land
Use Committee. With us this morning, we have Council Chair Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Good morning. We have Councilmembers Donald Couch -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Morning, Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: --Riki Hokama -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: --and Mike White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Morning, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Going to be excused today are Elle Cochran and Stacy Crivello. The rest of the
Council members will join us later. Department of Corporation Counsel, we have Jeff Ueoka-MR. UEOKA: Morning, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: --Deputy Corporation Counsel, Jo-Ann Ridao, Director of Housing and Human
Concerns.
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MS. RIDAO: Good morning.
CHAIR CARROLL: Morning. Will Spence will join us shortly, and we will have Department of Parks
and Recreation. David Goode is on-call, and Director of Water Supply, we have on-call.
Committee Staff, Clarita Balala is Committee Secretary, and Carla Nakata, our Legislative
Attorney. Today we have one item on our agenda for consideration, LU-3(1), AFFORDABLE
HOUSING PROJECTS (CHAPTER 201H, HAWAII REVISED STATUTES) (WAIKAPU
GARDENS, PHASE II) We will now accept public testimony. For individuals who will be
testifying in the Chamber, please sign up at the desk located in the lobby. For the remote sites,
please.. .one moment, we need to.. .one moment while we take care of some technical
difficulties. The remote sites, we will have them identify themselves now. Hana, identify
yourself and do you have any testifiers?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This Dawn Lono at the Hana Office and there's no one waiting to
testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Molokai, please identify yourself and do you have any testifiers?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there is no one here waiting to
testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Lanai, identify yourself and do you have any testifiers?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez at the Lanai Office and there is
no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Testifiers have three minutes and one minute to conclude if necessary,
and only items on the agenda will be accepted as testimony. Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: Mr Chair, the first testifier is David DeLeon. He'll be followed by Jacob Verkerke.
CHAIR CARROLL: And please identify yourself at the microphone and any organization you represent
if practical.
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONE . .

MR. DELEON: Good morning, aloha. Dave DeLeon. I'm speaking as a member of NPAC and the
Central Maui Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee. As an individual, I'm speaking in
favor of this project. I very much understand and appreciate the need for affordable working
class housing in Maui County. And I can think we can count on Mr. Spencer to make that as
cheap as possible and try to bring it, you know, bring it, bring it in at a cost effective way. I've
been on the receiving efforts.. .end of his efforts in the past and I know how tenacious he would
be in getting that way. However, I'm here to speak against one of this requested exemptions and
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that is that sidewalk along Waiale and Waiko. That intersection is gonna be a major intersection
in the future and it's already becoming a major intersection. We always think of Waikapu as a
rural community, if you look at the planning, it's gonna become an urban community, and we
need to have the urban entitlements in place. You know, you wouldn't think of...there's a lot of
ways you can save money. You can save money by not having fire hydrants or you can maybe
not do sewer hookups or you can maybe skip drainage improvements. The same thing with
sidewalks in major intersections, you wouldn't...that should be...that's a standard, it cannot be
taken out. And particularly in the consideration that there's gonna be a commercial outlet at that
same.. .at that intersection. So it's gonna be a draw. People are gonna be trying to walk there.
We've already designed our communities so that our children and the elderly are designed out of
walking in our communities. This is not safe for them and if we start allowing projects to
develop major intersections without, without the necessary improvements then we're gonna
have, you know, continuation of the problem. We'll end up with a situation like we have in
Makawao where we have an urban situation and no proper sidewalk to accommodate. I'd also
like to suggest that this project needs to have pedestrian access to the commercial from the
project itself, not on the main road, but through, through the backend of the project onto--nice,
there's the maps here--there's right, connecting to the commercial. It's easy to do just make
access possible so people don't have to go out in the street or drive to get to this commercial
which is around the corner. And I'd also like to suggest at a minimum that pedestrian access be
allowed to Waiko Road. Right now, I don't see that there. I see a fire lane. I don't know
whether that's gonna allow for foot access or not. Mahalo. Oh, yeah, I'm sorry, one other thing
In reference to, and this is kind of tangential to this project, but I'd like to remind you that this
plan that you folks thought so highly last year talks about a bike lane, a bike path along Waiale
Road and I envisioned it from the cane haul roads that beginning at the, at the bridge on Main
Street and going all the way to Waiko and beyond. We need to save the right-of-way in that area
and right now the County's not making any efforts to do that while the development,
development of that properties begin to happen at Kuikahi. We need to save the right-of-way so
that we--that they'll realize this plan which what is called for in the Maui Island Plan and in this
plan itself. Mahalo.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Mr. DeLeon for being here. One
of the things that we discussed I believe at the last meeting with Department of Public Works is
that ultimately when Waiale gets expanded that they are planning on doing curb, gutters,
sidewalks, and bike paths all the way back up past this property and further. And I seem to recall
that the Director said that the cost difference between having them put it in versus the County put
it in was minimal So if we got assurances from the Department of Public Works that when
Waiale goes in, gets extended, they're gonna put in the curb, gutters, sidewalks, and bike paths,
would that help out in order to keep the cost down of the affordable homes? Would that be a
reasonable compromise?
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MR. DELEON: No, I think the operative question would be, when? I mean, if it's gonna happen in my
lifetime, yeah, I guess so. But that's not the way things work around here as far as
bicycle/pedestrian access is concerned.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. Okay, and that's one of the questions that we'll check with
Mr. Goode.
MR. DELEON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
MR. DELEON: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Chair 9
CHAIR CARROLL: Seeing none--oh, I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: I'm sorry.
CHAIR CARROLL: Let the record show that the Vice-Chair of Land Use Committee, Mr. Guzman is
present. Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to follow up on Mr. Couch's comment or
question regarding the Public Works Department. It was my understanding that they were in
opposition for the exemption for sidewalks and curbs.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Guzman, that would be appropriate questions when we question Public
Works -VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: --when we get down to that.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions? If none, thank you.
MR. DELEON: Mahalo.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Jacob Verkerke. He'll be followed by Glenn Adolpho.
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MR. VERKERKE: Good morning, Chair. My name is Jacob Verkerke. I'm here as the secretary, I'm
here as the secretary for the Waikapu Community Association. Our president is traveling right
now. The Waikapu Community Association is pleased to have this opportunity to present its
views on the application submitted for this affordable housing project. The association is happy
to support this application given the modifications that will be requested by the applicant. The
association was informed by Mr. Doug Spencer yesterday that following very open discussions
at the general membership meeting of the association last Monday, the applicant decided to
request a modification to the proposal before this Committee, resulting in the replacement of the
commercial component with up to eight additional affordable homes. The Waikapu Community
Association is very happy to see that JES Corporation is willing to engage the community of
Waikapu in dialogue on this project and to respect the community's values, requests, and
suggestions enough to modify the proposed development to create a win-win situation for the
community and for perspective buyers of these affordable homes. Based on feedback from the
Waikapu community, the applicant has agreed to the following key aspects of the application:
inclusion of a 15-foot buffer bordering the Waikapu Cemetery, elimination of the Waiko Road
access road for residential traffic, elimination of the commercial center at the intersection of
Waiale and Waiko Roads, and inclusion of eight additional affordable homes to replace the
commercial center. The Waikapu Community Association is very pleased and encouraged that
the consultative process with the community has had such positive results. The community of
Waikapu remains concerned about the impact on traffic in and around Waikapu as a result of a
number of planned and anticipated construction projects. The community statement of values is
very much in support of the concept of complete streets and efforts to provide for safe traffic
patterns throughout our community. Therefore, the Waikapu Community Association is
concerned about the possibility that the Committee may consider the removing the requirement
that sidewalks, curbs, and related improvements be provided along Waiale Road. Unless there is
a firm commitment with a near-term target date for County Public Works project to improve
Waiale Road in this manner, the community association would request that the improvements be
required for this project. It's not included in my testimony but I wanna make...point out that the
community association is not in favor of any improvements along Waiko Road because of the
overall condition of that stretch of Waiko Road. It needs way more attention and design
consideration than just adding sidewalks and curbs. Finally, while the proposed affordable
housing project will contribute to some degree to the traffic problems that already exist on
Waiale Road during morning peak hours especially, the association recognizes that the real
solution cannot be provided by the applicant alone. The Waikapu Community Association wants
to take this opportunity to remind the County Administration and Council that traffic lights at the
middle entrance to the existing Waikapu Gardens Subdivision will be needed to prevent
otherwise inevitable serious accidents as the traffic on Waiale Road continues to speed by and to
increase in volume. Thank you for this opportunity to provide testimony.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair, and thank you very much, Mr. Verkerke,
for being here this morning. It's kind of a powerful suggestion that was first part of your
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testimony, recommending removing the commercial component and replacing it with more
homes. Can you, can you share with us how that came about?
MR. VERKERKE: I know I've perhaps stolen the applicant's thunder here because that's just how the
process works at Council, but we happened to have our regular quarterly general membership
meeting on Monday. In previous meetings with the applicant we had expressed our concern
about the commercial center. We had extensive discussions on Monday with Mr. Spencer. He
perhaps may not have realized what he walked into at a meeting, but it all worked out very well
'cause we had a very good exchange of ideas and concerns. And subsequently as it was
communicated to me yesterday afternoon by Mr. Spencer, they went back to their engineers and
they went back and huddled and decided that replacing the commercial center with more
affordable homes is a viable option for them and I understand that they are here to request that
modification.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What, what I'm trying to get clarification on is I understand the
recommendation, why the recommendation, was there a concern about traffic-MR. VERKERKE: Oh, oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --as far as too many stores? What's the problem?
MR. VERKERKE: Absolutely. It's the traffic issue of a commercial center right at what will be a very
busy, very important intersection once the Waiale Road Extension is built. We do believe that in
the concept of smart growth it's nice to have businesses within reach of a subdivision so that
aspect came up, can people still walk to businesses? In the, in the long-term, we took a longer
term vision, we know Mr. Atherton with his Waikapu country town concept is going to be
building some commercial properties, neighborhood-focused commercial development just on
the other side of the Waikapu bridge on Honoapiilani. So we believe that to be within walking
distance. We know that Waiale Subdivision by A & B is going to provide similarly distributed
neighborhood businesses. We hope they will be neighborhood-focused businesses in various
centers within their large developments. So all and all we believe that that the community will
have easy access without having to jump in cars and drive several miles to get to the kind of
conveniences we hope to provide.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you for the explanation. That's what was bothering me was, you
know, this idea of wanting to be build neighborhoods with amenities in it and if we take it out,
then where would they go except getting in a car to go?
MR. VERKERKE: We think in the long term the need will be met, and at that particular intersection
with the traffic it will be very difficult I think for a successful commercial enterprise there and
the impact on traffic. We were very, very concerned about that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. I appreciate the explanation. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions, further questions for the testifier? Mr. Guzman followed by
Mr. Victorino.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair In your discussions I believe on Monday evening, did
you guys ever discuss about the bike paths or walkways that would connect from
Mike Atherton's project to this affordable housing project?
MR. VERKERKE: Not so much the Atherton project but we did talk about the ongoing development
down Waiale Road, and we had heard about the conversation with Mr. Goode about the eventual
plans for the County to provide sidewalks and bike paths. We know in the Waiale development
and the Atherton development in a general concept there is a lot of attention to bikeways and
pedestrian paths to make it non-motorized traffic friendly. So we hope when it gets to the point
where those developments move forward a little bit, we'll have an opportunity to get into
specifics to make sure that there is a interconnected network if you will of, of pedestrian and
bicycle roadways in the Waikapu community.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Verkerke, for being here and I
wasn't in the--I wasn't in the room when you gave your presentation, but I watched it on TV
that's why I can take a conference call and do, you know what they call that, multi-tasking, I was
able to do that this morning. I was at the meeting, and I think it was overwhelming that the
community didn't want the commercial project. That was very apparent. The traffic issue I
think, and I made it known to the community, it's not just one subdivision, it's a multiplicity of
subdivisions and the County that's gonna work on the extension and that may be three, five,
seven years off. It's not something that's gonna happen. But Mr. Verkerke, you and I are very
happy with what we've come up with now, the 56 homes, affordable homes instead of
commercial. Do you feel this will satisfy the Waikapu, Waiolani, and other...and the Waikapu
Gardens, Phase I, most of the people that are at the meeting, do you think this will make them at
least comfortable in what's happening?
MR. VERKERKE: I believe so. There's never been any opposition to the affordable housing and I
think making it an all affordable housing development is very much in line with the sentiment of
the communities.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And really the overwhelming at that meeting was the commercial
entity of this.
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's, that's what we got out of that meeting, isn't that true?
Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair I think I just wanted the public to understand what the
Waikapu Community Association wanted.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. VERKERKE: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the next testifier is Glenn Adolpho. No one else has signed up to testify at
this time.
MR. ADOLPHO: Aloha and good morning, Chair, Members of the Land Use Committee. My name is
Glenn Adolpho. Again, I'm a resident of Waikapu Gardens, Phase I, and I'm here testifying as
an individual. I, too, was at the meeting that night, Monday night. There was a lot of active
discussion going back and forth, and I think the developer has come to a compromise and a
solution that's a win-win for all. So my testimony is gonna be very short. I'm very for
affordable homes and I'd like to see more people get affordable homes. Last week when the
hearings were going on, we had a police officer here, we had nurses, a guy that was a nurse and
his wife came to testify, hotel workers and other County workers that were all in favor of this
project and trying to move it forward so that they could possibly have a home. And I ask your
support on this. I know you folks have a busy day ahead of you, and I thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Hana, do you have
anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Molokai, do you have anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. ALCON: There is no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Lanai, do you have anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: The Lanai Office has no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Is there anyone wishing to give testimony at this time? Please come
forward.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, it appears there's someone at the testimony sign-in table.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anyone wish to give testimony at this time come forward? If not, I'm
going to close public testimony. Go to the podium. If you haven't filled out the form, do so
afterwards.
MR. BARTOLOME: Good morning, Chair Good morning, everybody.
CHAIR CARROLL: You can lower that microphone just a little bit. Lower.
MR. BARTOLOME: Lower?
CHAIR CARROLL: Lower, down.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: To you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: To your mouth.
CHAIR CARROLL: There you go.
MR. BARTOLOME: First of all, I would like to thank everybody for...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: May we have his name, Mr. Chair? Name, please?
MR. BARTOLOME: My name is Eleazer Bartolome, and I am a Police Officer for the Maui Police
Department. I am engaged to my fiancé of over two years and we have two rescue dogs. I also
served in the United States Marine Corps as an infantryman where I was deployed Operation
Iraq Enduring Freedom for both Iraq and Afghanistan. I have worked in different agencies
throughout our nation, ranging from wildland firefighting in Arizona to resource management at
the Haleakala Park and our National Park. And like I said, I wanna thank everybody for this
initiatives that you have taken in regards to you know, building affordable homes for people of
Maui. My testimony is gonna be short. Growing up in Hawaii, I've enjoyed firsthand the beauty
and wonders this place offers. It is important that we continue to take care of this place and
generations to follow. Having the opportunity to own a home in Maui is a dream come true.
And owning a home is the next step for my fiancé and I before we can make additions, you
know, children and to our family. And with the cost of living in Maui at staggering rate it is
difficult to afford that offers a safe and ideal environment to raise children and I believe Waikapu
Gardens is that place. In closing, like I said, I wanna thank everybody and I can promise you as
a Police Officer that I will contribute to the fullest to make this neighborhood the place to be.
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Mr. Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you for being here to testify. How long
have you been on the force, on the-MR. BARTOLOME: Since August of last year, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So just a little, about a year, a little over a year?
MR. BARTOLOME: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And what does your fiancé do, just for the-MR. BARTOLOME: She's a barista. She makes coffee-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay.
MR. BARTOLOME: --at Maui Coffee Roaster.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm sorry, I didn't know what that meant at that point, so I
apologize. You know, I truly apologize.
MR. BARTOLOME: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And so you're looking forward to subdivisions like this where you
have affordable housing for which you can hopefully afford to buy and as well as raise your
family and all the other amenities that Maui can offer?
MR. BARTOLOME: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. And that's our hope too that we can help you
and others to do the same.
MR. BARTOLOME: Thank you, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you very much for being here. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. BARTOLOME: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anyone else in the Chamber that wishes to give testimony at this time?
Seeing none, if there's no objection we will close public testimony. Public testimony is now
closed.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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CHAIR CARROLL: That was fast.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONE . .

CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. The Committee is in receipt of the following: correspondence dated
August 26, 2013, from the Director of Housing and Human Concerns, transmitting the following:
an application for development of the proposed Waikapu Gardens, Phase II project on
approximately 10.501 acres in Waikapu, Maui, Hawaii, pursuant to Section 201H-38, Hawaii
Revised Statutes. The proposed project consists of 48 affordable single-family housing units to
be sold as house-and-lot packages, with 100 percent of the housing units offered at affordable
prices to income-qualified households, and a neighborhood commercial center. And a proposed
resolution to approve with modifications or disapprove the proposed project. Correspondence
dated August 28, 2013, from Planning Director, transmitting a copy of his correspondence dated
August 13, 2013, to Council Chair Gladys C. Baisa, concerning the requested exemption from
the Maui Island Plan Protected Area designation of Preservation for the property.
Correspondence dated August 30, 2013, from the Department of Corporation Counsel,
transmitting revised proposed resolutions, incorporating non-substantive corrections. Document
from Vince Bagoyo, Bagoyo Development Consulting Group, received at the Committee
meeting of September 4, 2013, containing requested revisions to the list of exemptions and
proposed modifications for the project. Members, since the last meeting on September 4th , the
Committee has received the following responses: correspondence dated September 9, 2013,
from the Director of Public Works concerning the issue of curbs, gutters, and sidewalks;
correspondence dated September 10, 2013, from the Director of Housing and Human Concerns,
transmitting the cost breakdown of each exemption requested for the project; correspondence
dated September 10, 2013, from Douglas Spencer, transmitting a proposed price chart for
houses in the project, and the chart for cost exemptions per lot. Members, in light of what has
just transpired and the applicant willing to make some changes, I'm going to call him forward at
this point. Could the applicant or his representative please come to the podium and identify
yourself and comment on what the Waikapu Community Association has brought up?
MR. SPENCER: Thank you, Chair. My name is Doug Spencer. I'm appearing here on behalf of
JES Corporation, the applicant in this project. And before I get into that, I just wanna take with
the Chair's indulgence a brief moment to wish my dad a happy birthday. It's his 83' birthday
today. ...(applause)... And you know, as a family we are blessed each and every year that we
get to have another year with him given his health problems he's had through the years, and so
we're just glad that he's here with us today. As Mr. Verkerke said, we had a very spirited
meeting on Monday night. Mr. Victorino was there. He can attest to that. And people shared
their concerns and ideas, and you know, we all get very passionate about what we believe in.
And after leaving the meeting, you know, I really tried to sleep on it and listen to the hearts of
the people, and you realize sometimes we're always very defensive about our position because
we think our position is the best one. But I've learned something, when I sleep on something
overnight, and I really try to listen to what people say, you know, I can change my mind and
change my passions, and in this particular case we really listened to the hearts of the people of
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the Waikapu community. We listened to 'em. And I woke up the next morning thinking you
know what, it's best that we do this for the community. And yeah, it stings, it's a hurt for us, but
so what. In the bigger scope of things, it's a win-win thing. Eight more people get a affordable
house. What's wrong with that? That's a good thing. We make the Waikapu community happy.
They even asked us, would you just please build more homes? We're in support of more homes.
And so we've done that, and we've agreed to do that and we would just ask, you know, the
Council's indulgence, you know, on that. And we have prepared a proposed new site layout that
with the Chair's permission, I'd like to pass out to the Council members. And while Ms. Nakata
is passing that out, our only request on these eight additional homes is that these eight additional
homes we would request to be placed into the 121 to 140 percent income category and that we
not be restricted on the maximum price we can charge as long as we are within that category.
We have submitted to you a proposed pricing schedule for the remaining 48 homes which we
will agree to abide by if this project is approved, but on those eight additional homes to, you
know, help lessen the sting somewhat of losing the commercial center we would ask the
Council's indulgence, you know, on that particular issue. One other very minor matter on a
housekeeping measure as we go through these exemptions, in looking through them on the
exemption list, Item I, which request an exemption in accordance with HRS 237-29 and
201H-36, it's redundant. We don't need the Council to grant that and so just to speed things up,
we can eliminate that. Number J, which is an exemption from HRS 467 dealing with real estate
brokers, we have retained the services of a real estate broker so we don't need that exemption
any more. So we can remove that to make things simpler for the Council.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the applicant? Mr. Victorino, followed by
Mr. Guzman
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Let me say, thank you, and those exemptions I guess
we'll discuss a little bit later. I think they're...I don't see any major reason why not, but we'll
discuss it. Anyhow, Doug, first of all, yes, I was at the meeting and you heard what I heard, and
when we left I said, think about it. You did. And I can tell you now, Mr. Chair, I'm very
honored to say, I can put my support behind of it now because they've done really what the
community asked. It's not often that we've had this happen, and in fact, in many cases it's a
battle to the end to get things changed, and you did, and your father did, and the company did,
make what I consider the concessions that really going benefit everyone like Mr. Adolpho said, a
win-win for everyone. So I wanna thank you. Yes, the meeting was spirited, but always with
dignity. No one ever got out of hand. No one ever got what I call abusive. And I wanna thank
the Waikapu community, Waiolani, and all the different groups that were there because it was
not...Waikapu Community Association is the Waikapu Gardens, Waiolani, the old Waikapu
area, it's a conglomerate of all of the associations within that region and so I would say that
Mr. Spencer did his best. I think now we have something that can work on. I see no, no big
hitches, but we'll discuss it, maybe if any other Council member has anything else they're
concerned with, but I think, you've heard from the community and as the area representative, I
wholeheartedly support it with the amendments that you're proposing. I really appreciate that.
Thank you, Mr. Chair
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Mr. Spencer for being here today, and I also
wanna commend your efforts in working with the community as well as your long-standing
family in terms of looking out for the community in the best interests of the community as a
whole. My concern deviates just a bit in terms of the Central Maui Pedestrian Bicycle,
Bicycleway Plan. And I was inquiring whether you would consider placing a bike path or
walkways on the Waiale side just to allow the people within the subdivision an opportunity to go
outside the subdivision and connect up eventually to the other associations or future commercial
areas I guess where Mike Atherton's project will be, but I would like you to consider that as
well. I think that would be wonderful for Kahului--or the Central Maui as a whole as well as the
residents within the subdivision. Thank you. What do you think about that I guess my question
would be?
MR. SPENCER: Well, as a very avid biker rider that rides 75 plus miles a week, and I take my life in
my hands when I go ride. God's been fortunate, I haven't been injured yet. I support, you know,
bikeways personally. You know, as a company, we try to keep these homes affordable. The
prices that we have given to you on that list as you can see is well, well below what the
maximums are within the County's own pricing guidelines. All we would ask is, if we're gonna
have these further requirements put on us, we allowed to increase those properties...those prices
ever so slightly to accommodate for these extra cost. You know, we don't have a problem in
principle about doing it at all. We think it's a good thing. It's just we have to balance that with
keeping prices as affordable as possible, and so that's kind of our official position on it. And the
other thing too is with regard to Waiale Road, it's kinda hard because we don't wanna go put
something in, the County comes in later 'cause they're gonna four-lane it, whatever, and they
just rip it up a few years later, that's kinda a waste of money and resources. You know, so it'd
have to fit with what the County's long range plans are for Waiale Road.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay, I guess I can get the additional information from the Department of
Works when they come in. Thank you very much.
MR. SPENCER: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the applicant at this time? And of course, he will be
here during the entire discussion. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair Thank you, Mr. Spence, Spencer for being
here. You know, along the discussion of certainly bike, bikeways and sidewalks, now that we
have, you know, pretty much houses all the way around on that corner, and ultimately sometime
down the line there's going to be potentially a convenience area for people to shop up across the
street, across Honoapiilani Highway within relative...relatively easy walking distance from this
location, you know, going up Waiko Road, and I know the residents in the area don't want any
improvements on Waiko Road certainly. Are you, would you consider around Lot 9,
between.. .possibly between 8 and 9 as a way for people to get out on foot and possibly on bike
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out to Waiko Road so they don't have to deal with at least the portion of traffic from Waiale to
that point? Only because if we're not gonna do curb, gutter, sidewalks on Waiko Road at least
we'd wanna kinda give somebody a little bit of a relatively safety until they get out past the
subdivision there?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, point of order?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, Mr.-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What Mr. Couch is asking is already in the plan. If you look on
the top of 9, there's a little pathway out and then there's the pathway for the cemetery, and that
was assured by Mr. Spencer when we first met on Monday, and that hasn't changed and it still is
shown on the map itself.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And it's going out all the way to?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Waiko Road.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Waiko Road. Okay.
MR. SPENCER: Yes. I was going to say the same as Mr. Victorino said.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. SPENCER: We've already provided for that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know you did, that's why...so that's why I wanted to make sure
that was...
MR. SPENCER: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Members, when we go through the modifications and the rest, we're
gonna have a chance to address specific items also. At this point in time, obviously this is a very
major change in the application. We are going to have to make changes, me and the Staff over
here, so...and since we're really constrained for time, I'm going to take a rather long recess to
redo a lot of the...because everything ties...a lot of things tie into the business center. And so I
need to redo with the Staff a lot of this so I can present it to you so we can go through this and
get it done. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I think that's a great directive from you as our Chairman.
I am very supportive of your request. I do wanna bring up a issue with me and I just want you to
consider it. I know there's a clock ticking and the applicant has a need to have a decision made
by this body sooner than later, but you know, talking to planners in and out of government,
Chair, what we doing is actually creating in my point of view like a project district. We setting
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new standards of zoning. We're allowing 5,000 square-foot lots. This is all different from the
County standards. It interests me that for doing this, and for me it's more of a compliance down
the road is that it's difficult to find. Project districts are by ordinance It's in the County Code.
It's easy to find. Anybody can look at a project district and know what is the exact standards for
the specific project area. I think Council needs to take a hard look and put these not in
resolution, but in ordinances so anybody can find the current standards and what is appropriate
especially for taxation on what this type of special projects are doing, because while we maintain
the existing or the original zoning, community plan and land use classification, what we approve
by this is completely different. It's all new standards, new conditions, new parameters. Why
shouldn't it be through an ordinance and easily found by anyone that wishes to follow up and
especially for us during taxation season and we gotta come up with the real property and
understand unless a planner documents it on their files, it's very hard for us to find it, and you
know, maybe that may be something when the Planning Director--we ask him to return--might
be able to give us some comment, but that's my concern, Chairman, that if we're gonna create
new standards for a subdivision like this project, Council process is by ordinance and two
readings, and I just needed you to consider that, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair 9 Chair'?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, there were some specific questions that I think some
of the Council members had for the Department of Public Works and as well as the Planning
Department. I know you have to go in and make all these changes, but some of those questions
may be applicable to some of the changes that we're talking about and I'd like to have
clarification. They're both in the gallery now and I'd like to request them their...for
. right now to
talk with them and ask questions of them now and that way when you get to go and redo, you're
clear in what, how you're going to redo your.. .your resolution. That's my request, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino and Members, if we are going to pursue along this line and grant
this request, we need to consider if we are going to do this request before we start changing or
talking about any other part of the application because this request everything hinges on this. If
we are going to grant this request then, you know, we can work on the rest. But this request has
to come first because that affects every other modification and everything else that we have. I
have a proposed motion for this request. Does the Members have any objection to pursuing it
that way?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Then we can put this motion on the floor and we can discuss it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair, Chair, Chair, Chairman, excuse me, Chairman, if I may?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know, I don't wanna delay what, you know, we're really trying
to do. I just bring up my concern that, you know, when we do zoning normally, that's how we
do it, two readings and ordinance. For me, I don't know why we choose to go the resolution
route. Obviously, you know, I have issues with doing it by resolution, Chairman, and I don't
know if Mr. Ueoka has a comment he can give from Corp. Counsel on whether or not my
consideration is within the parameter of the Committee, and if it's not, then you know, it's moot
already.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Hokama brings up a very good point. I will say the reason
why we go resolution is 'cause 201H-38 specifies by resolution, but there's nothing that would
stop the Council from after it passes this project out doing an ordinance just for, I guess for, lack
of a better quote or memorialization in-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Codifying.
MR. UEOKA: --yeah, codification, memorialization as to what the specifics of this area where it makes
sense, you know, it would be a lot easier even for myself if I have to look it up later on, just look
in the Code. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So Chair, what I heard is we can go forward with this current format
and follow up with an ordinance proposal of whatever is passed by resolution to codify it after, is
that what you're sharing with the Committee this morning, Counselor?
MR. UEOKA: Yeah, I don't see any problem with the Council following up this...whatever passes
today in ordinance form at a later time, but it will have already passed though, that's the...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, no, I, I understand that. I don't have a problem with that. But
my thing is getting it codified so that again, you know, we all know where to go when we need
to, because this is creating a separate zoning for all the other...than compared to every house
abutting this subdivision. They on different standards. They gonna be viewed differently 'cause
we granting them a different zoning component, and I don't prefer...and I, for one, don't prefer
the resolution route. I need it. .1 would like to see it in black and white like project districts, and
this is what it is, a mini project district. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And just a procedural request possibly in that,
you know, if you get no objection from the Members to go ahead and make your changes before
we get any motions done, so we can move to accept the changes as opposed to some sort of
motion beforehand If there's no objection, I think everybody likes the idea of the homes there
versus the commercial aspect. I haven't heard any negative comments about it and if that's the
case, make your changes and then we can have a motion to accept that.
CHAIR CARROLL: If there's no objection then, the Chair was going to call for a recess so Staff can
work on...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: How long Chairman, you need?
CHAIR CARROLL: One hour?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I mean, give yourself time but let us know.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: One hour? One hour.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair'?
CHAIR CARROLL: --I think that will.. .yeah, I think that's what's gonna take to put this together.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Chair, and I can...I have no problem with that. Again,
again, the Department Heads are here so I hope in an hour they can be back, because there are
questions with these changes that we need to address with the Department Heads. So that's why
I was.. .we going ask some of the questions now, kinda get it cleared up so then you can move
easily, but if you rather do it this way, fine. I have no objections to that, but I do want the
Department Heads back here for some questioning 'cause we do have some definitive questions.
CHAIR CARROLL: We can.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: We can proceed with the, the departments, but if we're gonna do that, we can't do
the.. .we're still gonna have to take a recess after that. It doesn't matter.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know, whether you do it before or after.
CHAIR CARROLL: Because we still have to take a recess.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I understand, Chair. But again, if some of those questions
were cleared up maybe before so that when you go and make changes, they'll be what I call,
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reasonable changes already. But if you wanna do it the other way, I have no problem with that,
Mr. Chair. We can wait. One hour from now not a problem in my mind.
CHAIR CARROLL: Well, I tell you what, let's call a one minute recess over here. Recess one minute.
.(gavel). . .

RECESS:

9:53 a.m.

RECONVENE: 9:54 a.m.
CHAIR CARROLL: . . .(gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting is back in session. Members, the
Land Use Committee will recess until 10:30 a.m.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, that's fine.
CHAIR CARROLL: That will give us time enough. I will feel much more comfortable before you talk
to any of the departments that we have what they need to hear.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair, and I appreciate that, and I checked with the
Department Heads and they are willing to come back so no problem. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: This Land Use Committee meeting of September 12, 2013 will stand in recess
until 10:30 a.m. Recess. . . . (gavel). . .

RECESS:

9:55 a.m.

RECONVENE: 10:41 a.m.
CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). . . This Land Use Committee meeting of September 12, 2013 is now
back in session. Members, Ms. Nakata is distributing what we had worked on during our recess.
Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, can we have a few minutes to go through this and then come
back in?
CHAIR CARROLL: Would you like five minutes, ten minutes, what would you like?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ten minutes would be fine, Mr. Chair
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Ten.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ten minutes. We will stand in recess until ten minutes to eleven. Stand in recess.
.(gavel). . .
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RECESS:

10:42 a.m.

RECONVENE: 10:54 a.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting of September 12, 2013 is now back
in session. Members, that one change is being handed out to you right now on that Number 1,
and this is the way we're going to proceed. We're going to start off with Parks. There was only
one request for Parks and that was from Ms. Cochran, who is not here, but I have Parks before
us. If there's any questions for Parks, and then after that we're going to bring down Mr. Goode
and anybody else necessary. You have the.. .everything in front of you so there's any pertinent
questions you want to ask any of the Department Heads, we shall go right down and get to it.
Right now, the floor is open. Is there any questions for Parks? If there are no questions for
Parks, and again, I do not know why Ms. Cochran wanted Parks over here, if there are no
questions for Parks, I am going to let them go.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No problem, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you very much. Thank you for coming down. Mr. Goode, could you
please come down? And if you can identify yourself at the microphone?
MR. GOODE: Good morning, Chair and Members. David Goode, Director of Department of
Public Works.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, the floor is now open. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Goode, for being here. The
question I have is, you know, a comment was made by the developer in that if we were to require
curb, gutter, sidewalk on Waiale Drive and a bike path that they wouldn't wanna put something
in that you would eventually have to tear out. What are your, what are your plans for...from
Waiko Road back towards Wailuku for curbs, gutters, sidewalks and bike path in that general
area in that, on that road?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Goode?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair and Mr. Couch, I think I discussed a little bit of this at the last meeting, but in
general that's an important corridor to the region as another way to move, move traffic. Actually
eventually through Imi Kala and over the stream really connect Waiehu to Waikapu, and so as
such, we've...you know, where we've had the opportunity to get right-of-way, and in this case,
most of that area from Kuikahi to Waiko is 80 feet. Gives us a lot of opportunity to, you know,
to construct eventually a roadway that has something for everybody. So it would have bike paths
or bike lanes, pedestrian facilities, and adequate traffic lanes to meet the traffic demand which
the General Plan is indicating that there's gonna be a lot of growth in this area. So our
immediate plans are to continue Waiale, you know, past Waiko South and connect up to
Honoapiilani Highway. After that, we would be looking to include in future Statewide
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Transportation Improvement Plans, the STIP to have other facilities built. It could be additional
curb, gutter, and sidewalk, bike lanes, et cetera. Currently we don't have those in the plan, but
given that this is a major corridor for the region that it currently only has really two lanes and
shoulders in portions of it, we'd be looking to do that, you know, in the medium term. I can't
really say short term and I can't give you a definitive amount of time, but it's something we
would like to see done.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Now, I see in your response in your September 9 th letter back to
the Chair that your response basically talks about if we were to require curb, gutter, sidewalks, it
would be the same as what would be in front of commercial designated area. But, now that
we're contemplating not doing commercial, would you change that response in any way or...
MR. GOODE: No. No, there's two portions related to the Code. One, if it's urbanized, it's
single-family, it requires curb, gutter, sidewalk, same for commercial into a building permit. So
we would still be looking at in the new plan, curb, gutter, and sidewalks, drainage improvements,
underground utilities as required in this...for this project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So you're still opposed to the exemption, that request, they're
requesting exemption from curb, gutter, sidewalk on Waiale Drive there?
MR. GOODE: We are.. .we support the Code as written, and so the Code says it's required. We, I think
I mentioned this before, I believe it's a policy call of the Council, alright, and so there's
obviously a tradeoff here for more affordable housing versus complying with the Code. So we
don't strongly object to the exemption, but we support the Code.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And lastly on that, Mr. Chair, if I may, the last follow-up?
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COLTNCILMEMBER COUCH: Would it...relative to the total cost going to Kuikahi from Waiko Road,
would that save the County a lot of money if they put their...if they put their portion--as you can
see they're not very, not very much--if they put their portion of curb, gutter, and sidewalk that
would match what your potential future plans are, would that save the County that much money?
I'm trying to figure out the amount of savings to allow for the more affordability of the homes
versus the amount of savings for the rest of the taxpayers?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Goode?
MR. GOODE: I believe we're talking about a few hundred feet of frontage, three, four hundred feet
maybe, and then that whole stretch to Kuikahi is a mile or more, so that's the math. Whether or
not it's a lot of money, it'd be a lot of money to me, but you know, in the scheme of things, no,
it's, you know, it's a portion of the entire future project. And I think what the applicant said is
fair in saying that I don't...we don't want to rip out something that's put in either.

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 12, 2013

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. GOODE: And so we would, if it's required and an exemption's not granted we would work closely
with them to figure out a way to put it in so that it's not ripped out in the future.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, okay, thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Goode for that clarification.
Again, mostly because we have not, and we did not require Phase I to put the curbs and gutters,
right?
MR. GOODE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's the 411 homes that are there which takes up almost, not
quite three-quarters of a mile if you go from one end to the other. And now we would ask them
to do two or three hundred feet and be like a sidewalk going nowhere, which right now I was led
by their consultant, I asked him, and he said when he sat there for a day on that corner, he saw
three pedestrians the whole day. And I can tell you I've driven that road and very seldom do I
see any pedestrians walking even though there's quite a, quite an area of grass. I mean, it's not
like you got a narrow strip like Waiko Road or anything You got a lot of area to walk. So you
don't see a lot of people using it. I think partly because people do not follow the 20 mile an hour
speed limit, that would probably be the first reason, and secondly, it's kinda of a, you know,
people just don't walk it. They walk within their neighborhoods but they won't walk there. So a
sidewalk that leads to nowhere like on Honoapiilani Highway where people then start to traverse
areas where it becomes dangerous is not something that you would encourage us to put forward,
right?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Goode?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's a trick question, but I...yeah.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, that's a, that's a good question.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's a trick question. Sidewalk goes nowhere, a dead-end
sidewalk.
MR. GOODE: It's, it's not, it's not, I don't wanna say, it's not a perfect solution, no. And you know,
again, the Code has what it has primarily because we're looking at, you know, where we can get
it done by others we prefer that, saves us all money in the long run, you know, but there are
instances, this one is, you could say, literally a little bit out in the boonies, right. It's a long ways
from an existing sidewalk that, yeah, a little bit of sidewalk is really not going to encourage more
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folks to walk where they gonna have an ending to that sidewalk and they're gonna have to go on
the dirt shoulder so it's not, it's not the best scenario.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So again, just so that, you know, it's not just the matter of
money, it's a matter of being kinda like to no end, you know, it's just like put a sidewalk right
here and then there's no sidewalk for another mile and a half till you get down to Kuikahi, and
so, you know, I think that's one of those issues that I can go along. If you had sidewalks that
were there and you were to interconnect then I would have a whole different viewpoint on that,
but I think in what they're trying to do, these 56 additional homes and those people are not going
to be running out on the road to go look for the sidewalk to go from point A to point B about
200 feet and then say, oh, no more sidewalk, let's walk back. So thank you, Mr. Goode for your
clarification and thank you for your common sense approach. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for Mr. Goode? And he will be here as we go
through the modifications too.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Carroll?
CHAIR CARROLL: We can always call upon him at that time. I'm sorry, Chair Baisa. You're too far
down there all by yourself.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, I'm in the, I'm in the south forty so nobody pays attention to me,
but you know, I may have missed it during the discussion, and if it was said, I apologize, but you
know, I'm really a numbers, bottom line person. What is the money that we're talking about that
is involved here? We're saying well, putting this in might affect affordability. How much are
we talking about, more or less?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Goode?
MR. GOODE: I think they have the number. I don't. I could hazard a guess, but you'd probably get a
better number from the developer.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, I know that you do an awful lot of this kind of work, any guess?
Are we talking millions?
MR. GOODE: Well, I can guess.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Are we talking thousands? What are we talking?
MR. GOODE: Five hundred thousand dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's a lotta a money.
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MR. GOODE: Potentially more. Potentially more. What we...we've been working on, you know, this
potential exemption with Staff, and the project engineer and we found out yesterday that
Waiko Road has some challenges, and in order to do curb, gutter, and sidewalk, et cetera may
require moving Waiko Road to the south towards Maalaea where there's some large utility poles
that would need relocating.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And therein -MR. GOODE: That cost would be significant.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --therein lies a lot of money. You know, I think it's important when we
discuss the impact on affordability of the homes that we have numbers; otherwise, we're just
speculating. You know, if it's a little amount, well, it's a little amount. But if it's a large amount
then it's significant and we really need to take the time to check it out. So thank you, Mr. Chair.
And I'll ask the applicant when we have a chance to ask him again, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Excuse me, any more questions for Mr. Goode at this time?
Mr. Guzman followed by Mr. Couch.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair Mr. Goode, in regards to the exemption of the curbs,
sidewalks, gutters, you mentioned in your statement that at some point it's going, it's gonna have
to be done. And so my question to you is, is it going--is it that significant of an impact if we do
put in that segment of the sidewalks and gutters and leave the Phase I open? I mean, we've gotta
have a starting point some place. You know, for me, I would rather have something there than
nothing. And so, is there plans to somehow start or when, when will this happen in terms of that
whole Waiale roadway, sidewalk, bike path happen? And it, would it be better to at least start in
one section as opposed to starting it on Phase I, starting it in this new section?
MR. GOODE: Well, Mr. Chair-VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: And then go downwards, you know.
MR. GOODE: --generally the process would be because it will be eligible for Federal funds is that we
would then try to program it in the, our Federal funds allotments and that comes in the Statewide
Transportation Improvement Plan, the STIP, and we're nearing the end of the current four or five
year STIP, whatever it is and we'll be starting a new one. So we probably look to say, okay,
we'd like to slot this project in, you know, five years from now or something like that. And then
we'd look at...that's what we might ask for, but what we end up getting say from the State and
Federal Highways we may not, we may not get it. There might be other priorities. We're
also...the State is undergoing the Long Range Transportation Plan right now for Maui island,
and so that's another opportunity to see where does this particular project bubble up compared to
all the other needs throughout the island and the County. And so I don't know where all those
processes are gonna end up, but we can at least say we're interested in doing this project and
whether or not we get that funding or not is remains to be seen. If we got it, we would look and
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say, okay, where would we want to start, and we'd probably wanna start by the other side and
connect it to Kehalani. The sidewalks by Longs and that whole development will be coming in I
think with their next couple building permits. They have a phased improvement plan there, so
then you hit the sidewalks by Kehalani, then you hit no sidewalks right by as you come up to
Kaohu Street, and in fact we got money this last year from Council to do a little sidewalk project
there on that portion of Waiale near Kaohu. So we try to connect from where we currently have
infrastructure and work our way out. That's kinda a long answer to...
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah.
MR. GOODE: Sorry.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Who was the next one over here, Mr. Couch? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And you know, I have to ask this question
every time. I know Mr. Victorino will not really like it but have you at that intersection, have
you considered. .1 know the State or the State requires or the Feds require you to take a look at
the first control at that intersection is a roundabout, have you looked at that?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, we did. We're in the Draft EA process for the Waiale Extension which includes
improvements to that intersection as well as improvements down Waiko Road towards Kuihelani
Highway. And it was evaluated. I think it came out negative. I can't remember all the reasons
why exactly but it may have to deal with topography and expected imbalance of the legs and the
traffic volumes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions at this time for Public Works? If not, thank you,
Mr. Goode.
MR. GOODE: Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'd like to call down Planning now, oh excuse me, Water. I didn't see you up
there first time, that's why. Please identify yourself at the microphone.
MR. TAYLOR: Good morning, Chair, Members. My name is Dave Taylor. I'm the Director of the
Department of Water Supply.
CHAIR CARROLL: The floor is now open. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'll ask the question. Why should we exempt this project from the
water availability requirement?
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MR. TAYLOR: The water availability ordinance specifically exempts 100 percent affordable projects.
So I don't think the question is to me why should you? I think the question is really to the body,
you passed an ordinance that wanted that...wanted exemptions for that. That was already this
body's wish which was written into ordinance. It's not a request of ours. So we're just simply
saying that according to the ordinance, you've already stated County policy that you wanted this
exempted.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So you can certify that there's water for this project?
MR. TAYLOR: We're prepared to serve this project if it's approved.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Does any other project get impacted negatively by, by this decision?
MR. TAYLOR: Any water system as you add one more user, another more user the chances are greater
that drought affects your neighbors. So obviously it's easier for the Department to operate a
water system that has set infrastructure if there are fewer customers. As there are more
customers, it becomes, you know, more likely that it has negative impacts, but this project does
not raise any red flags in either the area or in the system in general that we feel that our operation
and system can't handle it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Any impacts on proposed nearby neighborhood future projects,
Director, that you can think of?
MR. TAYLOR: As part of the 201H process, it's really a big picture approval. Later during subdivision
and plan review, the engineer working for the developer will have to look at the local system,
including our system in more detail to put in any engineered improvements necessary to alleviate
any such impacts if they are found to exist.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You have a sense of how much that could cost potentially, and how
that would...for us we just trying to figure out if that will impact the sale price, eventual sale
price.
MR. TAYLOR: Forty-eight, and my understanding.. .1 watched a little of the meeting this morning and
I.. .it's either 48 units or possibly you've changed it to 56 units. I assume that got approved
while I was gone. That's not an enormous number of houses for that area considering what's
already there. So our engineering staff who looked at it last week didn't foresee any--just taking
a broad look at it, didn't foresee any large engineering challenges with the local distribution
system.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. You know, Chairman, I know the importance of providing
this type of housing and yet from the exemptions that, you know, that's being asked, the
discussion of the bike path, curbs, and gutters, I've made an, you know, a reassessment and my
concern is the sustainability of the real property tax revenue stream to pay for all these things at
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the later date. You know, this is, this houses is important but they're gonna be Homeowners
class, they're not gonna be really paying into the revenue stream. And you know, it's a concern
of me of how we're gonna look at borrowing in the future that, you know, these are some of the
things we gotta take into account when we make decisions exempting our projects, 'cause then
who's gonna pay later and how we're gonna pay for it? I bring it up now that it is a concern of
me that I am...the sustainability of the real property tax is in not the greatest shape that I would
like it to be in, seeing what is being projected in debt and projects for the future. So thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, and if my colleagues would turn.. .there is a response
dated September 9 to you Chair from Doug Spencer as far as the anticipated exemptions per lot.
It's on the second page and it's according to their estimates it would be $22,759.88. So if you're
asking that question, it has the breakdown of the various fees that being exempt for 100 percent
affordable housing. And this Council in its wisdom when we put the exemptions in especially
for water and others, we took into account 100 percent affordability, you know, 100 percent of
the project would be affordable housing. So I think that's something you can see for yourself the
difference, almost $23,000 per household. So I think that's something very important to take
into consideration. As far as real property tax and RPT and all these other issues, that's
something to be discussed in budget, and you know, we seem to be reluctant. We seem to bring
it up every time we're in this kind of a situation instead of where it should be brought up, but
that's fine, Mr. Chair, that's the way life is. But I look at what this does for the community. It
gives police officers and fire fighters and others a chance to own homes at an affordable price,
250, 300, 350 which if you go market price out there you can't even find that. Those homes
come on the market, according to realtors, anything comes under 400,000 it's snatched up in
seven days and in escrow, done. So.. .and a lot of it it's cash sales, it's not even our local people,
but let me not get into that dissertation either. I think they've answered all the questions.
They've put in the emergency, they've segregated the cemetery, they've taken out the
commercial entity. My colleagues wanna keep asking questions, I have no problem with that. I
think we can answer everything You know, until the community association and Mr. Spencer
came back with this final revision, I wasn't sold on it because of the commercial entity. Now,
I'm behind of it, you know, so I'm gonna push very hard to make sure to see this happen because
it affects my community directly. But if it was in anybody else's community, I think they'd be
speaking the same language I am. This is a chance for a lot of our working people who have,
you know, whether they're working in the hotel industry, whether they're working as a
emergency or essential services, whatever it might be, they have a chance to buy a home at an
affordable rate. I think that's an...that's very important in this whole equation. I don't know,
you know, if you have more questions, you're gonna have to ask the questions. As far as curbs
and gutters and sidewalks, I am tired of sidewalks that lead nowhere. I'm tired of that. I got 'em
all over Wailuku, sidewalks that lead to nowhere. They're not complete streets, they're not
complete, they're not roundabouts, they're nothing, they just goes and they end. And so you put
people in this.. .in harm's way because Waiale is a classic example, especially from Iao School
up, there's no sidewalk and the kids are walking on the road. We need a sidewalk there. So why
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don't we get that done? So we're gonna charge all those people who live there all those years?
That road hasn't changed. That part of Waiale has been the same for the last 30 years. I drive
that road. I know that road. So again, to put onerous demands on affordable housing is not what
I like to see us do. That's just my personal take. Everybody has their own individual, you know,
issues, but I can tell you there's existing roads. I have more miles of roads with no sidewalk as
far as developed areas than any other area in this County, and I challenge anybody to tell me no.
I've got more unaccepted roads and unaccepted subdivision entrances and exits because they
haven't been accepted. I'm tired of it. I just wanna see something get done, and I think this is
something that needs to be done. So I'll leave my colleagues to ask their questions, but I feel
like at this point in time, they've answered everything we've asked them. They've done
everything the community asked them to do. I don't need anything else that is onerous to make
this more expensive for those who need these homes very badly. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions at this time for Water? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair And this may not necessarily be for the Director, but
the Exhibit 2 that was handed out this morning, does not reflect the request for the exemption
regarding water system development fees. It was in our initial list. Is that a...is that correct that
they have withdrawn that request?
CHAIR CARROLL: The list that you have over here, the one right after the resolution, the one was
passed out?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah, right after we...yes, and after we finish with Planning, we're gonna go
down each individual one.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah, and then each individual one we are going to pass by motion.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for Water? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That didn't quite answer his question. Are they, are they not asking to
waive the water development fees now?
MR. UEOKA: Mr. Chair, if I may? In front of you is the Chair's proposal. He is not recommending
the waiver of the water system development fees.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, so this is the Chair's proposal?
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MR. UEOKA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: Their application was submitted on August 26, so these are all from the Council these
proposed modifications.
CHAIR CARROLL: And at that time, we had the business portion in there. So that can be a matter of
discussion when we reach that point because the business portion needed...anyway, we'll get to
that.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for Water? If not...oh, excuse me, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Taylor, you know, having worked on the other side of
the coin here for Waikapu Gardens, Phase I, I recall sitting in many meetings having some issues
with water. Are you guys anticipating their needs now or is all the things that they had to deal
with in Phase I is this small enough that it isn't going to affect 'cause we had, we had many
meeting that that had some conflicts with water. So are, are...do you anticipate that this is pretty
straightforward?
MR. TAYLOR: I don't wanna commit before we see the engineered blueprints of what they're actually
proposing, but because it is significantly smaller, our preliminary look is that there won't need to
be nearly as much offsite improvements to enable the project which should make it simpler for
the developer, but that is again, something that really no one, we can't be sure until we see their
civil engineers proposed plans of the water system improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for Water before we get into Planning? If not, thank you.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: And if Mr. Will Spence could come down? And please identify yourself at the
microphone.
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'm Will Spence. I'm the Director of Planning for Maui
County.
CHAIR CARROLL: The floor is now open. Questions for Mr. Spence? I know a lot of this
we...questions we answered at the original meeting. So I don't know, but we brought
Mr. Spence down just in case anybody thought of anything after that. Any...Mr. Hokama?
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, a couple of things. Director, one of the things that I
brought up earlier was that, you know, I view this as zoning in a sense or a mini project district
because we're setting different standards for each-MR. SPENCE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --application that comes before us. So eventually I would prefer this
to be part of an ordinance consideration, it be put into the Code for easy access, easy review of
what we pass as the new standards for this one small area-MR. SPENCE: Right.
COLTNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --that no other area will have the same, you know, exact standards.
So you got any comment on that, about codification of these types of thing? I know the
Legislature, you know, stated in their statute that we could do this by resolution, but that just tells
you how much they know about our processes as counties, okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Spence?
MR. SPENCE: Okay. It's sort of a broader question. I know 201H allows for exemptions. I'm not
sure that without looking at it really closely, I'm not sure how it...I suppose it, it allows you to
set standards which to me is different than an exemption.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But to me, you know, codifying it makes it clear for RPT, for your
planner down the road, you know, easy to find, they know where it is, if they're gonna go to
3,500 square foot lots then it will be in the.. .you know, it will be black and white, easy to find,
anybody can know why on this side of the street I'm being reviewed this way. On the opposite
side, Mr. White, because he had a totally different process is totally viewed differently with the
same thing.
MR. SPENCE: And I'm not, I'm not disagreeing with the Council member. I'm just...that's sort of a
question that lingered in my mind. Does.. .the process allows exemptions, I'm not sure it
says...I suppose, you know, it's within this body's purview to set standards as well.
The.. .because it, because it, it is by resolution and because it's.. .you know, you're not.. .1 mean,
as proposed it's not changing zoning, the underlying zoning is still Agriculture, the community
plan's Agriculture, the State District's Agriculture, and you are not...by, by passing a resolution
to allow this affordable housing project which I'm not saying you shouldn't, but you're also not
removing those underlying uses. So, I mean, unless it's specific. You know-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's part of my dilemma, Director.
MR. SPENCE: --yeah, I...
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Because we zoning on zoning in a sense which kinda is befuddling
to many people, yeah, because again that was the problem that I brought up in the first meeting.
MR. SPENCE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We maintaining the underlying and yet we're creating new zoning
standards through legislation.
MR. SPENCE: So I think my suggestion to the Committee, and, and at the first meeting we did talk
about perhaps it should be followed up with a resolution to actually zone the property, and I
understand the Council member's concerns, you know, the.. .what do you zone it? The regular
R-1, R-2, R-3 is R-1 is the smallest of the regular zoning districts that allows down to
6,500 square feet. There is, I suppose, and you would have to ask Corp. Counsel about this, you
could do conditional zoning.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Project district, planned developments.
MR. SPENCE: You could also do Zero Lot Line -COLTNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: True.
MR. SPENCE: --District which allows down to 3,000 square feet and no larger than six, but it doesn't,
it doesn't require at least my read of it, it doesn't require, you know, that you build on one of the
lot lines, but it allows it. So we, I haven't looked at this proposal in those terms.
COLTNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, Director, I mean, it's just something I think we gotta consider
down the road, you know-MR. SPENCE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --maybe this is not the vehicle, this is not the project, but it's a
dilemma that I think we need to resolve down the road 'cause I can see it to be a problem in
implementing or how we're gonna interpret certain things later regarding this type of project?
MR. SPENCE: And well, and what I'm, what I'm trying to think of is what would the Council's
alternatives be? Conditional zoning, R-0 or as the Council member had suggested project
district. That could be a way, but there's also a whole slew of regulations that go along with
project district and including multiple levels of review by Council and Planning Commission and
ultimately the Planning Department. And so I'm not sure how that would fit in because-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah.
MR. SPENCE: --if you say this is a project district, in order to establish those different standards,
you're still invoking all those other reviews.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, I understand, but project district was a new tool concept Council
created-MR. SPENCE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --to meet changes in land use requests and proposals, and that's
why...and I speak from experience 'cause Lanai was the first for project district ordinances. But
the second...you know, if I can move on, Director, so just your thoughts, you know, 'cause for
me I find it interesting, you know, I'm being asked to exempt the school, DOE school impact
fees and that is one of biggest I would say areas of concern Statewide of residents is the quality
of education facilities, the quality of teaching, the quality of the curriculum. You know, I'm
thinking maybe makes sense to not exempt the DOE fees, because I think that's for all those
residents who gonna move in that subdivision to their children's future advantage down the road.
Is there something I need to take into further consideration that you can maybe share with the
Committee this morning, please?
MR. SPENCE: I don't have any. The only specific thought I have, and this may have been discussed at
an earlier time. I know that again the law allows Council-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes.
MR. SPENCE: --to provide exemptions. To me it's not clear if the Council can exempt requirements of
State Law of a higher, you know, of a law higher up, and I see heads nodding yes, so I assume
that discussion's already taken place. That...I don't know the capacities of the schools in this
area. I know some new schools have opened up, so I, yeah, I can't comment on any kind of
detail.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, no, that's fair if you cannot, you know, respond, that's fine,
Director. I appreciate whatever you shared with us this morning. So thank you very much.
MR. SPENCE: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any more questions for Mr. Spence? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Spence, for being here. You
know along the lines of the questions that Mr. Hokama just asked, how does your Department
handle any requests for permits in Phase I since it's.. .this is a similar project but much bigger.
They get the similar exemptions and whatnot. When a request to do an addition or getting a
building permit over there comes through you, what do you look up now to see that, oh wait,
this, you know, it's still zoned Ag-MR. SPENCE: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --one big large lot zoned Ag. How does that work?
MR. SPENCE: We, we look at the resolution that's passed by Council to see exactly, you know, what
Councilmember Hokama is asking about the setting up new standards. We see that it's, you
know, built...without looking at that earlier reso, we would look to see what that says. If it says,
R-1 standards or if there were something specific named in that resolution, we would look and
say, so if it...if somebody wants to enclose a lanai or add a bedroom or something, so long as
they meet those standards, it would be permitted and we would sign off on a building permit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So you pretty much have a process now, it's just that you have to look
in a different place because resos aren't kept online which maybe we can work on that too.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah, we, we would look at it. They would be kept in KIVA.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct, but I mean, you know, from the County website you can look
up all the Maui County Code, but none of our resos.
MR. SPENCE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Or you can look up the resos, they're out somewhere hidden.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah, it's a little bit harder to find, it's not labeled resos for, you know, residential
projects-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MR. SPENCE: --or 201H projects. But we'd look at that reso essentially as the zoning.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, now in theirs...I don't know if you looked at their request for
exemptions. They wanna be exempt from Chapter 2.80B, General Plan and community plans
shall be granted permit...to permit the project to proceed without obtaining a community plan
amendment.
MR. SPENCE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I mean, that's kinda what we do anyway, but you're okay with that?
MR. SPENCE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. SPENCE: And that's a policy call to be made by the Council.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And then the other one that's interesting, you know, it says an
exemption from Section 2.80B.030, Maui County Code, incorporating by reference Exhibit B to
Chapter 2.80B, Maui County Code, the Maui Island Plan, shall be granted to exempt the project
from protected area designation of preservation for the property. I think we talked about this last
time. Since it isn't a requirement in the Maui Island Plan, it's just, it's in the diagrams in the
back saying look there are some preservation areas here. Do you think we need this exemption?
Do you see any pitfalls that if we grant this exemption, something else can come up later that
might hurt us? That's the only concern I have with these exemptions is that, you know, for this
project right here, right now, this seems right but are they overbroad, and that might be more of a
question for Mr. Ueoka eventually. But first -MR. SPENCE: I'll answer it first and then you can have...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --I'm just giving, I'm just giving you a heads-up, Mr. Ueoka, but
Mr. Spence as far as those two, are you...do you see any potential things in the future that we
might be overlooking at this point?
MR. SPENCE: No -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: If we grant those exemptions.
MR. SPENCE: --I think it provides some clarity. So in the, so in the future, somebody goes and looks
and goes, well, my house is in this protected area, what's that mean? Well, you can point
straight to the resolution and say that it's exempted. So it just, it provides some clarity and you
know, and that's part of that process we went through with the Maui Island Plan.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White, did you have a question?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh. Any more questions for Mr. Spence? Then we're going to get into the meat
of it. If not, thank you, Mr. Spence.
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Committee members.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, you have in the handout, the one that the opening page is a resolution,
and if you will turn to Exhibit 1, Waikapu Gardens, Phase II, Affordable Housing Subdivision
Modifications, Pursuant to Section 201H-38, Hawaii Revised Statutes. The first one, you have
the handout that was given to you the changes in the first one. The individual paper was handed
out to you. It's replace modification 1 with the following. It was given to everyone. I'll wait a
moment till I know that everybody has that. Everybody have that?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yes.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay, Members, we're going to go through this one-by-one, and what I'm going
to do is I'm going to ask for a motion from the floor and then discussion and then either we yea
or nay, we vote to either pass or deny or modify. So we're going to begin, and using again, the
replace modification. I'm going to ask for a motion on the floor. The neighborhood commercial
center including 60,000-square foot lot for neighborhood commercial center purposes shall be
deleted from the application and its accompanying preliminary plans and specifications and
replaced by eight homes to be offered for sale to families earning 121 to 140 percent of Maui's
median income at appropriate prices within the Department of Housing and Human Concerns
guidelines. The preliminary plans and specifications shall be revised as shown in the
approximate form, Exhibit 1-A attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion?
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just for clarification from Corporation Counsel, we don't really have a
metes and bounds so we're basically saying, Exhibit 1-A gives us a pretty.. .1 don't know, we
don't have metes and bounds so I'm not sure where each line is, that kind of thing. Are you okay
with that as far as, you know, if they decide to take out this little piece and that? I just don't
know what the legal ramifications.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr.--Corporation Counsel?
MR. UEOKA: Yes, I'm okay with it.
CHAIR CARROLL: I really like when we have an answer like that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Succinct.
CHAIR CARROLL: Very short and precise.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: On the record.
CHAIR CARROLL: Then I can understand it. Any other further discussion on to the motion on the
floor? Hearing none, all in favor, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, five, excuse me, six ayes.. .seven ayes. I keep, you
know, now I know why sometimes nobody sees me down there. . . . (laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair, it's really good to sit in different places. You get a different
perspective.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the end of the line is the not the perspective you want to be
in.
CHAIR CARROLL: Seven ayes, no noes, two excused, Ms. Crivello and Ms. Cochran.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE MODIFICATION 1.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. Number 2. The project...I'm asking for a motion from the floor. The
project shall be limited to one vehicular access on Waiale Road and one emergency vehicle
access on East Waiko Road. Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion? Seeing
none, all in favor of the motion, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, seven ayes, no noes.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
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NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE MODIFICATION 2.

CHAIR CARROLL: And Members, most of these things over here we have incorporated the suggestion
and changes that we had at the first meeting. So most of this I don't think we're gonna have
much of a problem with, but Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Especially before we get to the next one, are we
going to have any more chance to talk to the developer -CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --as these come up?
CHAIR CARROLL: The developer can be called forward with -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: --the Committee's approval at any time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Number 3. Applicant shall record a restrictive covenant that shall run with the
land, setting forth the fact that this project was approved with the understanding that the project
will have private sewer lines within its boundaries and that each lot of a shared lateral shall be
responsible for 50 percent of the costs of maintenance of the shared lateral. The restrictive
covenants shall be subject to the approval of the Department of Environmental Management, and
said approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And while I like loose language, I just wanna
make sure with Corp. Counsel that said approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Can
we...can either side claim that well, you're either being unreasonable or you're not, and then
what happens to us?
CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation Counsel?
MR. UEOKA: It's usually typical standard contract language. It's so both parties will be reasonable in
that reasonable person standard. So could be more specific with the restriction, but I didn't think
that the modification list was a place where we wanted to lay out all the restrictions and the best
entity to work with the developer would be the Department of Environmental Management on
this. So just hoping they could work together and I think they can.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, and Mr. Chair, my hesitation comes from the prior experience
with prior departments from Phase I that in some instances we were thinking were unreasonable,
but the department said it's reasonable and even among the Administration there was concern.
So I just wanna make sure that we can figure out a way to move this on and have somebody not
hold that over anybody's head. But if Corp. Counsel is okay with that, I just want it on record
that there's some concern about that.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Couch. Any further questions to the motion on the floor? Seeing
none, all those in favor of the motion, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carries, seven ayes, two excused.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE MODIFICATION 3.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Number 4. The owner of the project's internal roads shall reserve an easement in
the roadways for private sewer lines if the roads are dedicated to the County. Acceptance of the
roads by the County shall not be deemed an acceptance of the private sewer system.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion? Seeing
none, all in favor of the motion, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carries, seven ayes, two excused.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Balsa, Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE MODIFICATION 4.

CHAIR CARROLL: Number 5. To the extent permitted by law, the Department of Housing and
Human Concerns shall work with the applicant to allow the applicant to repurchase the units
from owners where the owners fail to meet the requirements of the Affordable Housing
Agreement. Applicant shall resell the units at affordable prices with affordable housing
restrictions.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion?
Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I know in our discussion--I don't remember
which Committee it was--possibly Ms. Crivello's Committee. We're talking about buying back,
the County buying back and the Department had some concerns. There were some restrictions
and procurement code and what not that she had some concerns with which is why they
couldn't...I think about 10 homes got kind of released in Phase I without the County being able
to buy them back or being able to do much with it. So are there things that we need to do, I don't
know if we can do it here, but I'm a little concerned about to the extent permitted by law. Is
there some things we need to fix at that point? I don't know that we can do it here, but we may
need to kind of help out that discussion here by maybe changing some of the wording? I don't
know.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I believe in Ms. Crivello's Committee she's working on some
changes to the appropriate sections of the Code or thinking about it at least. To the extent
permitted by law for this is.. .we're not 100 percent sure that this type of an arrangement will
work with like various Federal type things. I spoke with the applicant about it. That's why we
have that language in there. If we can get it to work and the Department finds it acceptable, we
feel it's a workable solution. We'll also be incorporating some of this into the Affordable
Housing Agreement that will be required if you guys adopt Modification No. 7. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That kind yeah, that kinda helps. So we're in essence saying in here
that if we can't deal with it, then the applicant can repurchase the homes and has to resell them at
should we say, current affordable housing restriction? I don't know, which affordable housing
restrictions would apply there?
MR. UEOKA: We'd get more specific about that in the Affordable Housing Agreement. What we are COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: --imagining right now is probably the remainder of the affordable housing term or
restriction term. That's what I would assume.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, but I mean, you're talking pricing levels. Is it open enough that
if the prices rise or fall that the range that they can sell them will rise and fall too?
MR. UEOKA: In other Affordable Housing Agreements we've...I've worked on Director Ridao with,
it's typically been, we stick with that same, whatever the HUD guidelines at the time are.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: At the time. Okay, great. Thanks, I just wanted to make sure we're
clear on it.
CHAIR CARROLL: And for the Members information, this wording was worked out to try to address
the concerns the Members had at the first meeting here. Any further discussion on the motion on
the floor? All those in favor, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried. Seven ayes, two excused.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carron, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Balsa, Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE MODIFICATION 5.
CHAIR CARROLL: Number 6. Applicant shall ensure a minimum of a 15-foot buffer, with a vinyl
wall, separates the project from the adjacent cemetery. The intention is to have a minimum of
21 feet between the nearest building and the cemetery boundary. Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Was there any, can you recollect, Chair, I'm kinda drawing a blank
on the height of the wall? Did we ever talk about how high the wall would be for this buffer
consideration or, you know, I would ask maybe if the applicant's representative or maybe
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Mr. Victorino since he attended the community meeting if there was any agreement or
understanding of what is the, the wall?
CHAIR CARROLL: We can call the applicant down and ask about it. I'm pretty sure the height is the
height of all those walls over there that they put up -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: --but we can, if there's no objection I'll-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: --oh, excuse me
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I have the answer for that question. It's six feet.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, six feet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Cannot go over six feet, and it was agreed upon six feet, but I
wanna amend your amendment. I need to amend your amendment.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 'Cause in this particular area the community had asked and
Mr. Spencer had agreed, okay, that Lots 8, 9, 10, 11, and 12, if I'm correct, and you can call him
forward, that no two-story buildings would be built on it. In other words, those four lots, five
lots can only have one-story building so that it would not inhibit the view plane looking up on
the hillside and the cemetery itself. If you can call Mr. Spence [sic] up to, to...'cause the
community had asked for that and I told 'em that at this meeting I would request that as part of
the conditions. So that would be my amendment.
CHAIR CARROLL: So if there's no objection, I'll call down...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is that a motion for an amendment?
CHAIR CARROLL: He has not made the formal motion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Well, I haven't made the formal. I want Mr. Spence [sic] to come down and I will
make the formal motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: No objection?

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 12, 2013

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objection.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Spence [sic], could you please come down? Identify yourself at the
microphone and you heard the question.
MR. SPENCER: Yeah, Doug Spencer for JES Corporation. Yes, at the meeting if you look at your
subdivision map, and we didn't discuss specific lots at the meeting, but it was my understanding
that we were talking primarily about Lots 9 and 10, 'cause those are the ones that are contiguous
to the cemetery.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And 12.
MR. SPENCER: I'm sorry, and 12. What I would ask for on 12, if you look at that one, that one is
going to be very, very difficult to put a one-story house on it because of the size, but what we can
do is, we can give a larger setback off that line just because that's such a narrow lot. It's kinda
hard to get that square footage on a house plan on a one-story plan on Lot 12. So we could, you
know, give a larger setback on that, Mr. Victorino, if that would be acceptable to you, but still
allows to get a two-story house so we can get sufficient square footage on that house.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And you don't think 8 and 11 would also inhibit because that's the
upper section 'cause that's what we had talked about?
MR. SPENCER: No, I think...if I remember correctly with Mr. Pellegrino, who brought that issue up,
he was concerned about people up there in two-story looking over down into the graveyard-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right, and vice versa.
MR. SPENCER: --you know, and vice versa, people in the graveyard looking up.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. SPENCER: Once we get down to 8 and 11, you know, we kinda have done away with that issue.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That topography would not have an effect. They would not have
the same looking into the cemetery and vice versa?
MR. SPENCER: No, 'cause the topography of that land kinda runs downhill toward Waiale Road.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, understood. I just...because I also wanna make it perfectly
clear, you know. So my motion then Mr. Chair, would be to amend your motion to add Lots 9
and 10, and also a setback of at least 30 feet, if that would be acceptable?
MR. SPENCER: No, that's way too much --
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, how much?
MR. SPENCER: --we can't get a house in there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, how much?
MR. SPENCER: About 20.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: A setback of 20 feet on top of the 15, right? 'Cause we already
have 21.
MR. SPENCER: Yes, correct on top of the 15-foot buffer. Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, on top of the 15-foot buffer.
MR. SPENCER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So my motion would be that 9 and 10 would be single-story
housing and that 12 would have an additional 20-foot setback from the wall itself so that it would
not intrude into the cemetery.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is that just 12 or 11 and 12?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just 12.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Nine and 10 and then 12 would be the setback one.
CHAIR CARROLL: So 11 has nothing?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, 11 and.. .8 and 11, doesn't...no, he's saying it would have no
effect.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. I'm sorry, could you repeat that motion one more time?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. That Lots 9 and 10 can only have one-story buildings, onestory...single-family, one-story, right? And that No. 12, Lot 12 would have an additional
20-foot setback from the wall, from where the wall is.
MR. SPENCER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, so wherever the vinyl wall comes across, an additional
20-foot from that wall.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
- 44 -
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CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, there's a motion. Do we have a second?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second. Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Seconded by Mr. Couch. Any comment to the motion to amend? Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just wanted to ask maybe Mr. Spencer if he could, if he would be
kind enough to help me understand it. Thank you for coming back, Mr. Spencer. So I
understand what Mr. Victorino is proposing and as I know the area, okay, the cemetery is on that
hill. Nine, 10, 12 is to take into regard some of the concerns of the view plane or the angles of
the view plane, so potentially then 8 and 11.. .wait, let me take this back, so 9 and 10 would be
single stories, 8 and 11 could go up to two stories, right, Mr. Victorino, under your proposal
now?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: They would be allowed to go two stories.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So is it kinda like kinda tough for the guys who going get Lot 9 and
10? They get the hill on one side. They going have potentially two-stories houses on this side
and the little guys in the vale, like the little house in the vale, I mean, is, is that potentially how it
could look like?
MR. SPENCER: Yes, you're correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, and there was no concern that the people who buy 9 and 10
might not have great view planes at all either?
MR. SPENCER: I think they would have concerns, but for the price they're paying, they probably will
accept that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, you get that 15-foot buffer too that, yeah.. .and that's gonna
be...if I may, please, Mr. Spencer? Is that gonna be a maintained buffer by the community
association or by your company?
MR. SPENCER: The HOA will maintain that buffer along with the rest of the common area
landscaping in Phase I.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, and that buffer you're currently looking at is just a plain
gavel area or it's going be a landscaped area or grassed area or, or just a cement or asphalt area
for access?
MR. SPENCER: It won't be hardscaped in the sense of concrete or asphalt. Probably some sort of a,
I'd say either gravel or grass. I'll leave it up to the HOA, you know, because, you know, with
water and cost of maintenance, I mean, that's something they have to consider.
- 45 -
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, but that hasn't been determined yet? That is something
you're gonna work out with the HOA?
MR. SPENCER: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. No, I just wanted to be clear of what I was envisioning with
the proposed amendment, so thank you very much. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion to amend? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mister...I guess it's kind of towards,
Mr. Victorino. It was mentioned that at the meeting they talked about Lots 8 and 11 as well. Is
the Waikapu Community Association okay with just 9 and 10, do you know?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, at that time we had no map to.. .what they had said was the
adjacent lots to the cemetery would be one-story. That was what we had discussed and agreed
on. I put 8 and 11 figuring that that would still be you know... (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I put that in.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But as he explained, with the topography it would not be. So I'm
willing to remove that, but 9, 10, and 12 was the real concern lots, but at that time, it's been
reconfigured so that those numbers weren't the numbers we were looking at.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gotcha. Okay. Thank you, Chair That's why I just wanted to make
sure that they're okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion on a motion to amend the main motion?
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, could Staff just confirm the language of the amendment? It was lots...the
following would be added onto the end of Modification 6: Lots 9 and 10 of Exhibit 1-A shall be
limited to a one-story dwelling unit. Lot 12 shall have an additional 20-foot setback from the
vinyl wall. Is that correct?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You're shaking your head, Mr. Ueoka.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's not what you wanted, yeah Mike?
-46-
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, there was no wall.
MR. UEOKA: Mr. Chair, if I may?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. UEOKA: Just the language, an additional 20-foot setback from the vinyl wall.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. UEOKA: So it would be 35 feet away from the vinyl wall?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, an additional 20 feet from the vinyl wall.
MR. UEOKA: So would be a total of 20 feet from the vinyl wall.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. UEOKA: So not additional?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, it's between-MR. UEOKA: Additional five feet, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --because it-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right now there's a six-foot setback, right, from the vinyl wall.
MR. UEOKA: No, no, there's a 15-foot buffer zone.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, the buffer is different. I'm talking from the vinyl wall
towards the house.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So where's the vinyl wall?
MR. UEOKA: No, my understanding is there's a six-foot setback on every...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: From the vinyl wall.
MR. UEOKA: No, no, on every house.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
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MR. UEOKA: So nothing can be within six feet.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Point of order. Correction, that's 10 feet for a two-story house.
MR. UEOKA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So then it would be an additional 10 feet, so it be a total of 20 feet.
MR. UEOKA: I think, I think the way this is worded right now, it's taking into account that six-foot
setback.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ten.
MR. UEOKA: Six-foot setback -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, okay, right.
MR. UEOKA: --from the house.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: And an additional 15 feet from there will be.. .so the building will be at least 21 feet
away, at least 21 feet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: From the boundary of the...
MR. UEOKA: From the boundary of the cemetery. On a two-story house because it is a two-foot
setback or sorry, 10-foot setback, it would be 25 feet away from the cemetery boundary line. So
I don't know where the...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, no, no, I, Mr. Chair, I think, I think there's some
confusion here. The cemetery boundary right now has 15 feet between that and their boundary
where the houses are is 15 feet.
CHAIR CARROLL: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And you're looking confused, Mr. Ueoka. There's a setback.
There's a 15-foot easement from the cemetery boundary to the boundaries of the houses there's
15 feet already.
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MR. UEOKA: The property line.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Property line, yes.
MR. UEOKA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Excuse me, excuse me, Mr. Chair, I can give you some language that
would clear this all up in a second.
CHAIR CARROLL: I tell you if nobody minds, some Members and others have to have lunch at 12:00
because of prior commitments. So I'm, yeah, so I'm.. .we're gonna have to recess in a few
moments unless we can work this out.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, we can work on some language.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We can work on the language, Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: If there's no objection then, we shall recess until 1:30.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I won't be back at 1:30, that's the problem, okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, since Mr. Victorino -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I said half a day.
CHAIR CARROLL: --wait, since Mr. Victorino cannot come back, and it's his district...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I don't want this project finished until I get everything that
needs to be, 'cause the people of Waikapu are depending on some of the language that need to be
entered. Okay, so I'm not happy to hear that, but fine. I'll see if I can cancel some of that
afternoon stuff and come back little while.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, you know what -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, but I said half day and that was all I said.
CHAIR CARROLL: --excuse me, Mr. Victorino, if we can work out the wording on this one right now,
we can at least finish with this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But there's some others too that I have to.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Well, if you wanna work out the wording on this one before we leave, we can do
it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's fine, you know. So I just wanted the wording to meet that
from the boundary of the property, now I'm not talking about the cemetery, I'm talking the
boundary of property right now, there's either a 6-foot or 12-foot.. .10-foot setback is that
correct? Okay, whether it's one-story or two-story. So Mr. Spence [sic] is saying if we
were.. .because of the narrow lot, he would like 20 feet setback if that was all right if he built a
20-foot -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two-story.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --two-story--I said 20-foot--two-story building.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I have some language to clear that up in a second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Could we...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I don't wanna. I want it done the way I want it done to make
sure that it's correct.
CHAIR CARROLL: If Mr. Couch has the language -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And my language will do that-CHAIR CARROLL: --that you would like...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --but if you want to stretch this out, that's fine with me.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, tell me what your language is.
CHAIR CARROLL: --is trying to work out that exact language, but...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That Lot 12 shall have a 20-foot setback from the rear boundary line,
boom, done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's what I said.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And he saying I cannot because you talking six-foot on top of
15-foot.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, because the word, "additional" was in there.
MR. UEOKA: Yeah, that just had...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: The word, if we just take "additional" out, we're fine.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I take the word, "additional" out and just 20-foot from the
property line.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, would you please restate the motion then because-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Do I have to do it all or just that part? Okay, Carla can we get...
CHAIR CARROLL: Carla, could you please...
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, so the additional language would be, Lots 9 and 10 of Exhibit 1-A shall be
limited to a one-story dwelling unit. Lot 12 shall have a 20-foot or a minimum 20-foot setback
from the cemetery boundary.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No. From the property line.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: From the property line.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The property line.
CHAIR CARROLL: No, not the cemetery boundary.
MS. NAKATA: But there will be multiple property lines.
CHAIR CARROLL: From the property...from the property boundary.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I'll get that, I get that -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The rear property line.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --let me get this is right first before I move onto something else.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We said the rear property line is what we said.
CHAIR CARROLL: The property line. That was all good except it's from the property line not the
cemetery.
MS. NAKATA: So Lot 12 shall have a 20-foot setback from the rear property line.
-51-
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Correct.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then the final thing on this is that the wall that comes across
the property line will be six feet in height.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, can we add that, the wall will be six feet in height.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's it, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, any more discussion to the motion to amend? Hearing none, all those in
favor, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, six ayes, three excused.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE AMENDMENT TO MODIFICATION 6.

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we have two more over here.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We still gotta do the main motion on six.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You're welcome.
CHAIR CARROLL: We're back to the main motion, as amended. Further discussion? Seeing none, all
those in favor of the main motion, as amended, please signify by saying, "aye".
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, six ayes, three excused.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE MODIFICATION 6, AS AMENDED.
CHAIR CARROLL: We have two more over here but we do have people with commitments. Our
Chair has already left. We will recess until 1:30. This Land Use Committee stands in recess
until 1:30. . . (gavel). . .

RECESS:

12:07 p.m.

RECONVENE: 1:40 p.m.
CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting of September 12, 2013 is back in
session. Members, we shall continue with Number 7, where we left off Applicant shall enter
into an Affordable Housing Agreement with the Department of Housing and Human Concerns
prior to the issuance of any building permit for the project. Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion? Seeing
none, all in favor of the motion, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried. Six ayes and three excused.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran, Crivello, and Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE MODIFICATION 7.

CHAIR CARROLL: Number 8. Failure to develop the project in accordance with the representations
made in the application, as modified herein, shall result in a loss of the exemptions contained on
the Modified Exemptions List.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion?
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The question here is if we.. .if for whatever
reason something happens, and they aren't able to meet Condition 8, but they've already gone
through the subdivision process, what happens? Is this language sufficient enough to say to
make the land revert back to the single lot or once they do subdivision it's subdivided like that
for the rest of...until it gets reconsolidated?
CHAIR CARROLL: Would Corporation Counsel like to comment?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. It's a difficult question. It really would depend on what stage of the
process they're at and the difficulty of undoing things I think it's possible to have it revert back,
there might be a way to do it or to remove final subdivision approval.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Would we be able to put that in the language? Just say, all approvals
prior to this revert back to or...I don't know, is there some sort of language we can put in there
just in case? I doubt it's gonna happen, but you never know.
MR. UEOKA: I think when you get that specific into matters, you might run into other issues. You
have to make.. .you'd have to really beef up the language of this. It's rather broad right now. If
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you wanna get that specific into certain approvals, you know, you'd have to get specific into
what constitutes a failure to meet certain levels, you know, do they have time to correct the
breach, all that kind of stuff I don't know if you guys wanna go there in this document, but...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, what other document would we go there in?
MR. UEOKA: You could require them to enter some sort of secondary agreement with maybe the
Department of Public Works. I'm not sure. I'm not real, I guess knowledgeable about how this
one would work.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, and Mr. Chair, that's my only concern, and you know, once we
get done with 8, I have a 9 that I would like to propose, but I would also like to talk to the, the
developer on that. It's somewhat related to this. So, possible something saying that the matter
will come back to Council, and then we could remove or can we even as a Council remove all
the subdivision? Because otherwise, this really doesn't make a difference. You know, the way
you're talking about it, this, this condition doesn't really mean anything.
MR. UEOKA: Well, it's not my intention for this condition to mean nothing the way I'm talking about
it, but I will say, if you lose your exemptions, you lose your exemption from the...you're not
exempting yourself out of the requirements of Ag 19.30A.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. UEOKA: So from thereon, you'd be extremely limited with what you could do with the land.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, it would be a nonconforming subdivision then and that work
throws them down into the nonconforming use, Code, I forgot, 19 something
CHAIR CARROLL: As the Chair has read this and when we discussed this before it seemed to be
sufficient, because it would be like taking away your driver's license and you can't drive a car.
It would really, really cripple the project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct, Chair, and I'm fine with that and if it has to stay that way,
that's fine. But we're taking one big lot and subdividing it and it's an Ag lot into 56 different
small lots plus the road. Okay, if they go through that process and something happens and you
know, they're no longer doing this, do we have a mechanism to get that one big lot back to, you
know, undo the subdivision? That's my concern.
CHAIR CARROLL: As far as I understand...as I understand it, it is as exactly as read, the loss of the
exemptions contained on the Modified Exemption List are moot. All those exemptions are moot,
and that of course, would be...
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But that doesn't remove the subdivision if I understand what
Mr. Ueoka was saying. It doesn't remove all the.. .and you know, maybe, maybe just.. .that's
just a concern that I know one of my other Members, colleagues.
CHAIR CARROLL: I do not know of any practical way to address that on the floor at this time. That
is.. .well, that would be a policy decision that we would have to make, because that is...I mean,
we're talking about, you know, you said, coming back to the Council or...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. Okay, for that, you know, I just wanted to have that in the
discussion, I don't wanna hold this up for this. So don't worry. I just...that is a concern that I
would have and maybe if Corp. Counsel can look into that prior to the regular Council meeting
where we...
CHAIR CARROLL: On regular applications we had similar discussions with conditions-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR CARROLL: --about the same subject. And it was determined at that time that that needed to be
brought up separately and made policy of, you know, the land...the Council, the Land Use
Committee, and that still needs to be done.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's really difficult to do it on the floor. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair I understand Mr. Couch's concern, and maybe what
we need to add to this is that essentially by the time we find out that something's not done in
accordance with the representations, it's likely that the subdivision will be in place, the buildings
will be significantly up and constructed and we find something wasn't done. Practically, I think
about the only thing that can be done at that point is that the loss of these exemptions would
result in a monetary payment to replace the savings or to give up the savings that were extended
by the exemptions. And I don't know if that's the effect of this or not, but as an example, by the
time the houses are up, the exemption from the Building Code or the Electrical Code or the
Plumbing Code, they're all gonna be in place. There's nothing you can do to change the
structure of something that's behind the walls. So it may, may be appropriate to reword this in
saying that it's not just the loss of exemptions, but it's the repayment of the saving that were
generated by the exemptions.
CHAIR CARROLL: I don't know. I'm not sure. You have any...that sounds more difficult than it just,
you know, just saying it.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I guess, I guess the question for the Chair then is, what do you foresee
as the result of the loss of exemptions?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Because if it's all built is.. .the exemptions have already been acted
upon. So there's--at the point at which the project is 95 or 99 percent complete and we see that
something hasn't been acted upon, the exemptions have been taken advantage of.
CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation Counsel, can you help over here?
MR. UEOKA: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I believe, I guess, you're asking what our remedy would be?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
MR. UEOKA: We could probably file suit if we needed to if, you know, this was.. .if there was a failure
to act appropriately. So that I guess is ultimately our remedy.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: That doesn't sound like a great resolution. I mean, if that's, if that's
what we would have to do, then I would almost rather put in a dollar amount instead of loss of
exemptions. Anyway, and the only...and Chair, the only reason that I...I think this is
appropriate in this case is that, this is a...we need to remember that at least my understanding
was that the.. .this is a lot that was part of an earlier subdivision that was part of the sliding scale
application, is that correct?
MS. RIDAO: Are you talking about Waikapu Gardens I?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, my assumption was that this is a lot that came out of a earlier
subdivision -MS. RIDAO: Oh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --that was, that was.. .to which the sliding scale was approved.
MS. RIDAO: Correct, correct, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So my concern is, here we have on ag lands we have limited the
amount to which you can subdivide an ag parcel. So this is a parcel that we're now significantly
further subdividing 'cause we're taking the 10-acre lot and dividing it into 56. So down the road
as we're looking at things like Launiupoko, what's, what's the penalty if somebody in
Launiupoko gets approval to subdivide and then bails on conditions? So this is a significant
improvement to the value of the, you know, of that particular lot. I support the project totally.
But, you know, if there's some way that we can make sure that everything is performed upon,
then I think, you know, I'm comfortable with that. But if we can't come up with something that
makes sense, I'm comfortable with that too.
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CHAIR CARROLL: I understand your concerns, Mr. White, but in order to put, you know, monetary in
there, you know, compensation if they do not finish that, to come up with something equitable
and I...that is not the easiest thing to do.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, for example the developer provided us with a list of the value of
each exemption, so if we were just to say if they don't follow, if they don't develop the project in
accordance with the representations made, they simply compensate the County for the savings
that were generated by the exemptions. Corp. Counsel may have a problem with that.
MR. UEOKA: Chair, if I may?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
MR. UEOKA: I think as we get more and more specific into these types of things, the true application
will be very challenging. For instance, if they build out the first 10 units, sell 'em, then
something which probably won't happen, they don't follow the terms of agreement, those
10 homes are already owned by private homeowners, for the next 38 I could see how they pay
us, but you know, we'd have to work that language out, all those types of things would have to
be considered.
COLTNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm not looking at the payment coming from the eventual homeowners,
just from the developer.
MR. UEOKA: Oh no, I understand that. It's just, we'd have to work all of those kinks out and I'm not
sure if.. .it'd be difficult in a two sentence modification in a 201H.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Not for the crackerjacks we've got in Corp. Counsel. ... (laughter)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's exactly the term, crackerjacks, okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And it's not so much this developer 'cause
they've proven themselves. What happens if something happens and they have to sell the project
for whatever reason? Then you get somebody else coming in and they decide not to go by what
was represented here, where are we? That's my, that's my biggest fear, and that's why I wanna
bring this up. This and my next condition.
COLTNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, Chair, Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, Ms. Baisa? You'll have to yell in there when you want me.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm bringing a flag the next time I have to sit at your desk. You know,
this is a really interesting discussion, because I can understand the idea about maybe
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remuneration which would be really hard to determine because we don't know what it would be
now or what it would be five, six years from now, it might be very different. So that might be
difficult, but surely is there somewhere in our history 'cause we have Mr. Ueoka and I know
Ms. Ridao has been around for quite a while, has anybody every reneged or not fulfilled this kind
of commitment, and what is standard and what do we do when somebody doesn't follow
conditions, do we take 'em to court?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Ridao or Corporation Counsel?
MS. RIDAO: I cannot recall any project that got started and didn't get finished under the 201H or even
any affordable housing project. As you know, we have 201H projects that never got started,
so.. .but I can't recall any project that once they got started didn't get completed.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What about Mr. Ueoka? What are the avenues that are available if
somebody doesn't follow through and fulfill these conditions that, you know, we're putting on
this land?
MR. UEOKA: I guess this is my fault this one. This is kinda modeled after what the State Land Use
Commission puts into theirs. And theirs one is or, theirs one, the State Land Use Commission's
is a little different 'cause they actually grant a District Boundary Amendment so they make the
statement if they don't generally follow the.. .in accordance with their representations, they lose
their State Land Use District Classification. So our thought was the closest thing to the losing
your State Land Use District Classification for our purposes was losing your Modified
Exemptions, your Modified Exemption List. That was the intention behind this, but yes, as you
get more, as you delve into it and try to look at applicability, I don't know how the State Land
Use one works, I'm sure if we needed to do this, I hope we don't have to ever deal with this, at
the time we could see what the violation was and try and figure something out.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But then what I'm trying to say is possibly rather than saying what's
gonna happen, it would be some kind of legal proceeding where the County would say, look you
didn't do your thing so now we're going to haul you in and have a legal discussion about this and
you may have to pay or something has to be done. But you know, I don't know if we can set a
dollar amount that which I agree with Member White would be the easiest way to say okay, give
us back this money because we saved you this and you didn't carry through. But you know,
when you get.. .when you're at the state where all the homes are built and all the infrastructure is
in, and the wall is up and the walkways are up and the laterals are installed and the water is there,
what do you do? I think the only avenue we have is to go to court and get money out of
somebody for not fulfilling the conditions, but then you penalize the homeowners by saying
okay, we're gonna take away your, your designation now from Ag to whatever, you know what I
mean? I think it's a day late and a dollar short. So I think this is a really tough one, Mr. Chair,
and this states exactly what it states and if we wanna craft something else then I think that's
another consideration that there be some kind of legal consequence if you don't do this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino followed by Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, another way we can do this and we've done it in the past
with many other subdivisions is to ensure a specific bond is put in to have all these exemptions,
okay. I mean, this has been done in the past and you're eyes are opening, Mr. Ueoka, don't get
nervous. I'm not that smart to create something like that right off the top of the head. I'm not
that cracker. Okay, so with all that in mind we can, you know ...(laughter)... stop it. There's
always another option of putting a bond in which until completion of all given exemptions that
bond will not be released. So that's another way, but I don't know what the developer would
think of that. I mean, I don't wanna go on forever 'cause you know the rest of the day is, you
know, I was hoping to get this done. But what do you think of that idea, Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: If I may, Mr. Chair? My only understanding is bonds have carrying costs associated
with them. So that's all I would say is the developer might have a difficult time bearing those
costs and keeping the homes affordable. That has been the...but that's up to you folks.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, maybe we can call the developer down and discuss.. .you
know, and ask him that specific question, but that would be another option, Mr. Chair, without
going into a lot of changes, and maybe what we need to do as Ms. Crivello is doing, look at this
whole, this whole issue and start making systemic changes along with the ideas we're talking
about. This is not the time and place to make one major sweeping change, but I would like to
find out from the developer what he thought of that idea and with your permission of course.
CHAIR CARROLL: Before I do that, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. You know, I'm comfortable leaving Mr. Victorino's
idea which I think is a valid one and our concerns that we've shared up to the Department and
Corp. Counsel to work into the housing agreement if, if that, if that fits. I don't think, I don't
think we have the expertise or the time to craft something that's, that's valid, but at the same
time I think if there's a--there's something, some representation that was clearly not fulfilled that
is material then there should be some penalty for that, and because everything is likely to be done
as Ms. Baisa said, by the time something's identified, then I think it's appropriate that it be
financial. So a bond may work. But I'm, I'm comfortable leaving it in the hands of the
Department and the, and Corp. Counsel to craft something as a part of the housing agreement if
that's appropriate.
CHAIR CARROLL: If there's no objection, I'll call the applicant down.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objection.
CHAIR CARROLL: Could the applicant please come forward? Identify yourself at the podium.
Mr. Victorino, do you want to restate your question?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: I think Doug, you heard my question. You know, specifically a
bond relating to the various exemptions and the financial impact those exemptions might have.
MR. SPENCER: Yeah, yeah. Doug Spencer on behalf of JES Corp. Yes, Mr. Victorino, that particular
bond may be totally impossible to get. Bonding companies aren't used to seeing things like that,
and if I can address it, you know, on a broader scale, and I think Mr. White brings up a valid
point where this is more of an administrative function because whatever we agree to, this is a
valid agreement between the County and the developer. And like any other agreement, if one
party violates it whether it's the County or us, there's remedies, you know, for that. For instance,
the outlet mall in Kihei, the State Commission brought them back, said, no, we're revoking, you
know, your permit to develop that because they were in violation of their conditions. In this
particular case, if you look at the exemptions we're getting, as we go through each step of the
process, we are getting those exemptions because we're complying with them and so as part of
the function, for instance, if we go in and we're not doing what we agreed to do on a Public
Works side, Public Works won't give us our permits. If we do something that Planning gave us,
Planning won't give us our permits. They won't sign off on our permits, so the compliance is
kind of sequential as you go along with the project. And so as a practical matter, and I
understand your concerns 100 percent, as a practical matter as you're getting those approvals,
they are enforcing compliance as you go. If at any step of the process you aren't complying,
your County bureaucrats are gonna put a stop to the project. That's kinda the enforcement, you
know, in here. And this language in here is very similar to what you see in SMA permits for
example, if you don't comply with your SMA permits, you lose your SMA permit. And we've
had a situation in the past where we've received a letter from Planning, says, hey you're in
violation of Condition No. 22, and you better fix it or we're gonna come after you. And so this
is where like any other situation in a legal relationship which is what we're entering into here,
there are remedies for violations of that legal relationship. And that's, you know, the best way I
can answer that, and I know as Mr. Couch says, we have no intention of violating these, but if
something happens, I totally understand that, totally understand it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for the applicant? Seeing none, any further
discussion to the motion on the floor?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If I may ask a question please, not of Mr. Spencer but of maybe
Mr. Ueoka can help me out. I heard Mr. Spencer's response and I heard part of the earlier
discussion from my office, so I'm aware of what the Committee's discussing at this point in
time, I understand that and I heard Mr. Couch's earlier comments so I understand that too. My
question is though, you know, when it says, failure to develop project in accordance, and then the
comment was, well, the County can stop issuing permits. Should there be a more serious failure
to comply, do we hold them to what standards, the standards that we pass under the modified
exemptions standards or do we hold them to the standards of the underlining zoning and land
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classification? Because we're not changing the Agricultural underlying component. So which
standards then is they held to because they.. .potential scenario if they violate this approvals,
yeah, besides the building permit and it goes further, what do we hold them.. .like on what
standards do we hold them to, the revised standards that is adopted by reso or the underlining
standards of the original zoning and land use classification?
CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation Counsel?
MR. UEOKA: If I'm understanding correctly, if they were to violate and before we were to remove the
exemptions from the Modified Exemption List, they would still be subject to the standards
included in this resolution. Only if they were to lose their modified, you know, the modified
exemptions then they would be held to the standards of the original zoning, Ag, I guess in this
case.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I just ask that because the second half of that sentence says,
shall resort in a loss of the exemptions contained on the Modified Exemption List, and that is
why I'm asking, does it then go to the underlining basic zoning standards and conditions of what
is permitted and not permitted and that we compare or we compare it to what's in the modified
resolution-MR. UEOKA: After...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --because this is what is being not complied with.
MR. UEOKA: Sorry.
CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation Counsel?
MR. UEOKA: After the...if they were...if something were to happen and they were to lose their
exemptions contained on the list then yes, it would be the underlying zoning, the Ag 'cause they
would not have the exemption from Ag anymore.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that's exactly what the second half of the sentence, right, shall.
MR. UEOKA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Shall. Okay, I just wanted to be clear, Counselor. So, thank you
very much for that clarification. Chairman, thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Seeing none, all in
favor, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, seven ayes, two excused.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE MODIFICATION 8.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'd like to propose another condition on here or modification.
CHAIR CARROLL: That would be a modification.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yeah, modification. Sorry.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, we did in the last.. .any of the 201Hs that I've been involved
in, we put a time limit as when to start and when to finish on these. I don't, again, I don't think
there's gonna be an issue with these guys, but in case something happens, we don't want this
thing out 15, 20 years sitting there. So I want to bring them up and find out when would be a
good time, time window to allow them to start and finish and then make that a modification if we
could.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any objection to calling up the applicant?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Could the applicant please come forward?
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MR. SPENCER: Thank you. I was conferring with my family members on this. So I would have no
problem if we agree to something start within two years, complete within five of when we start
construction. It's not going to happen in our case, but unless--Mr. Couch brings it up--if
somebody else comes in -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. SPENCER: --you know, to give them a reasonable time, but we'd be very comfortable with those
time limits.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I'm fine with that, Mr. Chair, like he says, his dad's probably out
there as soon as we say okay, he's gonna be on the backhoe. I realize that.
CHAIR CARROLL: Would you state your motion, please?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So I move to.. .the language is what we did the last time with the
Kaiwahine.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, Staff has the Kaiwahine language. If you want to insert the two-year and
five-year timeframes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
MS. NAKATA: Construction of the project shall begin within two years of the adoption of this
resolution and be completed within five years. The time extension to the construction initiation
date shall be considered by the Council upon timely receipt of a request for time extension at
least 90 days prior to the expiration of the initial construction start date.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's my motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved and seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion? Mister ...oh,
excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just, just real quickly, where she says, two years from the, from the
passing of this resolution to five years, can we add from the start of construction to give 'em five
years to construct? That was my intent. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But that's not what... (inaudible). ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: The seconder seems to have a concern about that.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah, 'cause that's not what she just read. So we're
changing. I wanna know what that change means because Kaiwahine was totally different. It
wasn't two years and then five years to complete, not from start of construction, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So you're changing the motion from what she read?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, that's what I mentioned. Wanted to amend it to allow...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You didn't say, amend, you said...you know...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You can't just change.. .modify.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Do it on the fly, that's what I'm trying to say just so that, you
know, we don't have one version being read and another version being...so what you're saying
is five years to complete or five years after they start construction?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Five years after they start.
CHAIR CARROLL: And we will be restating the motion before we take a vote.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, it should be yeah, corrected, 'cause I don't think
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah, we'll be restating the motion before we call for the question.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, any other further discussion before I have her read it back? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: She can go ahead and read it.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Go ahead and have her read it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, okay. Ms. Nakata, could you please read that?
MS. NAKATA: Construction of the project shall begin within five years of the adoption of this
resolution and be completed within five year...excuse me, let me start over. Construction of the
project shall begin within two years of the adoption of this resolution and be completed within
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five years of the start of construction. A time extension to the construction initiation date shall
be considered by the Council upon timely receipt of a request for time extension at least 90 days
prior to the expiration of the initial construction start date.
CHAIR CARROLL: And there is precedent for this because we have used this before. Any further
discussion to the motion on the floor? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I'm, I'm generally in favor of being a little more
generous with the timeframes. For me, to get this size of a project through the permitting and
everything else is not always very easy. So I would prefer that we change the initial start date to
three years from passage of this resolution as opposed to two, but I'm just suggesting a friendly
amendment to be a little, a little more generous.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Would there be any objection to the Members to changing it to three
years? Mr. White is asking for a friendly amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, question?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would like to, I'd like to if the maker of the motion would
withdraw, withdraw it, I would rather see it change from two years after final permitting has
been completed. In other words, if the permitting process is what holds up a lot of people which
we all know has been a challenge, that they won't be penalized if they've done all their
permitting and it's sitting on some desk. Although Mr. Goode has assured me that doesn't
happen anymore, but you know, I think this is, this is, you know, very important, Mr. Chair. I
know this is kinda like going off on a tangent, you know, if they don't get their permits and
they're stuck in 27 months they gotta come running in, ask for an extension, that's a lotta extra
work for these people. So that's my thinking If you're talking about permitting, then you know,
let's set it after the final permit has been approved for the subdivision.
CHAIR CARROLL: I think that's one of the reasons asking for a longer time period to address what
you're talking about but. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I understand what Mr. Victorino is saying and I'm, I'm
pretty much okay with it except for the fact that when you say, final permitting, you know, the
last house is the final permit. You know, so if they build 49.. .so we have to be very careful with
that language. I can go with what Mr. White says, because three years is more than enough. I
know it was less time for the 410 houses that they built, so I don't have a problem with changing
the two years to three years and that should be...
CHAIR CARROLL: The three years is a lot cleaner.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama?
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I'll leave it to my learned colleagues to decide what
language you want for the clock. My concern is more about with the years passing, how are we
gonna address the pricing of the units? Is it.. .shall we.. .is it.. .should we also put it as part of the
attachment of a modification to the reso, Chairman or...I mean, I know we talk about the
Affordable Housing Agreement, but that's not before me and that's not what I get to see for
approval today. And so for me, I'm sure a Spencer entity would like to do it as quickly as
possible 'cause they've agreed to a selling price or a component and so the sooner they can
deliver is to their benefit. And so I'm thinking, you know, we're talking about three years, but
I'm sure they would like their permit in three months if they could get it once we give approval.
So, for me I'm more concerned about timing of getting the actual home built and the price it's
gonna be sold to the residents of this County. That is of more of my concern with this, this
proposed consideration, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Further discussion? Alright, we have the motion on the
floor. Do you want that read again? Everybody clear on that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Has it been amended to three years?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay, could you please read that motion one more time?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's still two, eh?
CHAIR CARROLL: Or are you proposing...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm okay with the friendly. If he asked for a friendly, I'm fine with
that if everybody else is, to three.
CHAIR CARROLL: Three, yes. So that's acceptable, three years?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'd rather vote on the two, Chairman, because I support two.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I want it sooner, than later.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, do you want the motion read again with the three years inside there?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: Everybody understands the motion?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Two.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We go with the motion on the floor, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: He wants to go with the motion on the floor. So he objected to the
friendly amendment, and there is no amendment being moved, so...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So it's two and five.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So it's two and five as...
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's two and five as it stands. The friendly -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The current motion...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --yeah, the friendly amendment wasn't agreed upon.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, will you withdraw your motion then? Or you're just going to...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The amendment is not being proposed, Chairman. So we just go
with the motion as Mr. Couch recommended.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, so it's remaining at two years, the original motion. Further discussion?
Seeing none, all in favor of the motion on the floor, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, seven ayes, two excused. And that would be No. 9.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yep.
CHAIR CARROLL: And it's not on your paper obviously because that's new.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
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EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE MODIFICATION 9.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, Members, moving along. In your worksheets over here, you have
Exhibit 2, Waikapu Gardens, Phase II, Affordable Housing Subdivision, Modified Exemptions
Pursuant to Section 201H-38, Hawaii Revised Statutes. Exemption from Title 2, Maui County
Code, MCC, Administration and Personnel. A. under A, we have an exemption from
Chapter 2.80B, MCC, General Plan and Community Plans, shall be granted to permit the project
to proceed without obtaining a community plan amendment. No. 2. An exemption from Section
2.80B.030, MCC, incorporating by reference Exhibit "B" to Chapter 2.80B, MCC, "The Maui
Island Plan" shall be granted to exempt the project from the Protected Area designation of
Preservation for the property.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved. So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion?
Mr. Couch?
COLTNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just a point of clarification and I just wanted to
be double sure, that one, that one...the project is one single lot as, as we speak right now.
There's not a portion of a lot or anything else, is that correct?
CHAIR CARROLL: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. That's all. I just wanna make sure.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Hearing none, all in favor of
the motion, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, seven ayes, two excused.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Balsa, Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
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ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE EXEMPTION A.
CHAIR CARROLL: B. Exemptions From Title 12, MCC, Streets, Sidewalks, and Public Places. 1.
An exemption from Chapter 12.08, MCC, Driveways, shall be granted to exempt the project
from driveway permit fees and inspection fees.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion?
Hearing none, all in favor of the motion, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, seven ayes, two excused.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Balsa, Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE EXEMPTION B.
CHAIR CARROLL: C. Exemptions From Title 14, MCC, Public Services. No. 1. An exemption from
Chapter 14.35, MCC, Wastewater Assessment Fees for Facility Expansion for the
Wailuku/Kahului Wastewater Treatment System, shall be granted to exempt the project from
wastewater assessment fees. No. 2. An exemption from Chapter 14.12, MCC, Water
Availability, shall be punted to exempt the project from the County's Water Availability Policy.
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VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Since we're gonna take this C-1 and 2 together, I'm gonna vote no
on this...more on No. 2. At this point in time I think every project should not be exempted from
the County's Water Policy, and so I'm gonna vote accordingly at this, at this Committee level
regarding this, and that's just my, my personal position, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Ueoka, the water, Chapter 14.12, Maui
County Code, Water Availability, I thought 100 percent affordable was already exempt?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: It is. We just wanted to be absolutely 100 percent clear. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, there is already the exemption.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But we're exempting them from an exemption. So does that make it all
of a sudden not an exemption anymore? I don't know, double negative kind of thing?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Seeing none, all in favor of the
motion signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: Six ayes, one no, two excused. Motion passes.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Councilmember Hokama.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE EXEMPTION C.
CHAIR CARROLL: D. Exemption From Title 16, MCC, Buildings and Construction. Exemptions
from MCC Chapters 16.04B, Fire Code, 16.18B, Electrical Code, 16.20B, Plumbing Code, and
16.26B, Building Code, shall be granted to exempt the project from fire, electrical, plumbing,
and building permit fees, as well as inspection fees.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion?
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair And Mr. Ueoka, just to make sure we're clear
that we're talking about and maybe it's just the wording, we're talking about fire fees, electrical
fees, plumbing fees, and building permit fees? We're not talking about all the Fire Code?
They're not exempt from the whole Fire Code?
CHAIR CARROLL: No. I can answer that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Are there fire fees?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Yes, there are certain fees related to fire inspection and that type of thing
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, so this is just relating to the fees not the whole Code?
MR. UEOKA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion? Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, signify by saying,
"aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carries, seven ayes and two excused.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE EXEMPTION D.
CHAIR CARROLL: E. Exemptions from Title 18, MCC, Subdivisions. No. 1. An exemption from
Section 18.20.020, MCC, Sewage Disposal, relating to sewer lateral connections for residences,
shall be granted to allow for the use of double laterals instead of single laterals to the
single-family homes. Exemptions from Section 18.04.030, MCC, Administration, and
Section 18.16.020, MCC, Compliance, shall be granted to exempt the project from obtaining a
community plan amendment, a change of zoning, and a change in State land use classification.
No. 3. The urban standards relating to curbs, gutters, and sidewalks shall not be imposed on the
project as may be required under Sections 18.20.040, 18.20.070, 18.20.080, and 16.26B.3600,
MCC, for the portions adjacent to Waiale and East Waiko Roads. The project shall not be
exempt from requirements related to drainage, road widening, and undergrounding of
overall...overhead utilities. The portions of the project adjacent to Waiale and East
Waiko Roads shall be subject to the standards set forth in Exhibit 2-A, attached hereto and by
reference incorporated herein.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion?
Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, like the other consideration, I don't support No. 3, so at
this level I'm gonna vote no on this motion. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I also have great concern with No. 3, the sidewalks, and
the gutters, and curbs. I am in support of 1 and 2, but No. 3, I have a.. .I'm very torn in voting
for that, No. 3.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Short recess, Mr. Chair 9
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Short recess. Procedural matter.
CHAIR CARROLL: We will take a two-minute recess. We stand in recess. . . . (gavel). . .
RECESS:

2:27 p.m.

RECONVENE: 2:29 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). . . This Land Use Committee is now back in session. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I would request that we separate those three into three
separate votes, please?
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, if there's no objection, we'll separate.. .is it all right to put 1 and 2
separate?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Fine.
CHAIR CARROLL: We will-COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: --we will consider in E, 1 and 2 in, in the motion. We will not be considering 3.
Any objection?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, any further discussion on 1 and 2? Hearing none, all those in favor of the
motion, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, seven ayes, two excused.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE EXEMPTION E (1 & 2).
CHAIR CARROLL: I will restate Exemptions from Title 18, MCC, Subdivisions, No. 3. The urban
standards relating to curbs, gutters, and sidewalks shall not be imposed on the project as may be
required under Sections 18.20.040, 18.20.070, 18.20.080, and 16.26B.3600, MCC for the
portions adjacent to Waiale and East Waiko Roads. The project shall not be exempt from
requirements relating to drainage, road widening, and underground...undergrounding of
overhead utilities. The portions of the project adjacent to Waiale and East Waiko Roads shall be
subject to the standards set forth in Exhibit 2-A, hereto, attached hereto and by reference
incorporated herein.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So moved, Mr. Chair
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Couch, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion? Hearing
no discussion, all in favor of the motion, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: That was two noes?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Correct.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. We have five ayes, two noes, two excused. Motion passes.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, and Councilmembers Balsa, Couch,
Victorino, and White.
NOES: Vice-Chair Guzman and Councilmember Hokama.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE EXEMPTION E (3).
CHAIR CARROLL: F. Exemption from Title 19, MCC, Zoning. Exemption from Chapter 19.30A,
MCC, Agricultural Districts, shall be granted to permit the development and use of the subject
parcel for single-family residential purposes. Further, this exemption shall allow the subdivision
of the property in the plat configuration shown in Appendix C of the application, as modified by
Exhibit 1-A hereto. The following zoning standards shall apply to the proposed residential lots:
Minimum size: 5,000 square feet. Height: No building shall exceed two stories or 30 feet in
height. Setback: Front yard, minimum 15 feet; garage, minimum 20 feet; one-story homes,
minimum 6 feet; two-story homes, side and rear, minimum 10 feet. That is the motion...that is,
I'm requesting.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Guzman, and seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion? Seeing none, all in
favor of the motion, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, seven ayes, two excused, no noes.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE EXEMPTION F.
CHAIR CARROLL: G. Exemptions From Title 20, MCC, Environmental Protection. 1. An exemption
from Section 20.08.090, MCC, Grubbing and Grading Permit Fees, shall be granted to exempt
the project from grubbing, grading, and permit fees, as well as inspection fees.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion? All
those in favor of the motion, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, seven ayes, two excused.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE EXEMPTION G.
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CHAIR CARROLL: H. Exemptions From 30.. .excuse me, Exemptions From 302A Through 1601
Through 302A Through 1612, Hawaii Revised Statutes, HRS. An exemption from
Sections 302A-1601 through 302A through 1612, HRS, State Department of Education School
Impact Fees, shall be granted to exempt this project from State DOE and school impact fees.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion?
Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I won't support this motion. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion? Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, please signify by
saying, "aye"
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: We have six ayes, one no, two excused.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Councilmember Hokama.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE EXEMPTION H.
CHAIR CARROLL: I. Exemptions from Chapter 19.68, MCC, and Chapter 205, HRS. An exemption
from Chapter 19.68, MCC, and Chapter 205, HRS, shall be granted to exempt the project from
obtaining a State Land Use District Boundary Amendment.
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VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion? Seeing
none, all in favor of the motion, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE EXEMPTION I.

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we have come to the end of that list. Is there any further discussion or
motions to be made from the floor? Seeing none, the Chair would give his recommendation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair would entertain a motion to recommend adoption of the revised
proposed resolution distributed at the meeting today entitled, APPROVING WITH
MODIFICATIONS THE WAIKAPU GARDENS PHASE II PURSUANT TO
SECTION 201H-38, HAWAII REVISED STATUTES, incorporating any amendments and
nonsubstantive revisions and filing of the other two proposed resolutions.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: It's been moved by Mr. Guzman, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion?
Ms. Baisa, I saw you that time.
- 79 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 12, 2013

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I'm trying to be quiet in my corner, and
you know, only speak when it's necessary, but I think this is the moment that I wanna be
counted. I wanna say that I'm in full support of moving this forward. It's a very exciting day for
me. You know, the year that Mr. Victorino and I came to the Council, the mantra of the election
was affordable housing. Everybody was really hopped up on affordable housing, and that has
continued in the last almost seven years that we've been here, and it gives me great pleasure to
be able to move on a project that is going to help affordable housing for our working families.
You know, it was very touching to me, you know, we often speak about this in Council, but it
isn't often that we actually have people that are gonna be beneficiaries or possible beneficiaries
come and speak in support and share with us their search for housing. And these are people in
our community that are very, very important to our safety and our wellbeing of our community
and it's kind of...grabs your heart to listen to them say, you know, I'm a hardworking police
man, I'm a hardworking nurse, I have a family, and I can't get a place to live because they want
the American dream, they want a piece of the rock, and they want to call it their own, and they're
willing to work hard to get it. And so it's...it's a great moment for me to be able to support
something that will make that happen for about 56 people, 56 families. And so I just wanted to
say, my appreciation to you for bringing this forward, appreciation to my colleagues for all the
difficult decisions that we make in looking at this kind of application. It isn't simple, none of us
want to give exemptions because we all know that every time we give an exemption, it means
someone else has to pick it up, but isn't that what community is all about? I help you, you help
me, and we all benefit in the end. We have a better community. People that don't have a place
to live require a lot more help, you know, we see it, we see these folks that are.. .have nowhere to
live and then we have to provide all kind of services in order to take care of them. So for me,
being able to approve an affordable housing project, and it's not 100 percent wonderful, but the
idea that we're helping people get a home to me is wonderful. So I want to thank the Spencers
for their proposal, and I will be supporting this. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Mr. Couch?
COLTNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair I, too, support this project. I've worked with
these folks before on the other end, and they do a pretty good job at getting some affordable
housing in. I do have a concern, however, that I just wanna make sure that everything is on the
up...not on the up and up, that they're cleared with everything. I'm not sure, but I think they're
in the SMA District, so we may need to give them an exemption for an SMA and EA. I'm not
sure. I think we may wanna check with Director Goode.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch, only the Planning Commission is control of SMA.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I understand that, but if we don't give them the exemption then they're
gonna have to go through the SMA.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We cannot give exemption.

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 12, 2013

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And the EA. It's 205. We can give 'em the exemptions from 205.
Yes, we can. We just did 205 right now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Hurry up, Ueoka, please go tell him
CHAIR CARROLL: I would, I would ask Corporation Counsel and Ms. Ridao on that...on your
comments.
MR. UEOKA: Mr Chair, I believe the applicant is comfortable with the exemptions requested.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, and first of all, I wanna thank my colleagues upfront
for tolerating my passion with this 100 percent affordable housing. I mean, this is the first time
we've had 100 percent. We've had a lot of people talk about it. Kaiwahine is still talked about,
but I don't see a piece of dirt moved. Kahoma has been talked about, I don't see a piece of dirt
moved. And I'll guarantee you, Jesse is going to be out there tomorrow moving some dirt just
because we said this. It may not be applicable, but I know that that's their style, but you know,
and this is what the community wanted. This was scrutinized by the community. I was at that
passionate meeting that the community said no to commercial, but yes to affordable housing
because most of them have benefited from affordable housing. And so they listened, they made
the modifications, they came back with a plan, now with eight additional affordable houses
versus what they had originally committed to 48 with no commercial entity in there. So that
takes care of traffic, takes care of a number of things that, you know, really I think was very
beneficial to the community of Waikapu, especially the old community. On the other things
about the graveyard and all the other...the easement, the setbacks, the height restrictions, they've
agreed to all of this. You know, we've given them exemptions, but we've also given that to
other projects who have not started. So I hope that we do not forget that these projects gave us
timeframes and some of them are coming up pretty soon. I'd like to see what they gonna...if
when and if they come running in to tell us, hey, we need more time or what's going on. So I'm
going to ask Ms. Ridao to start looking at some of these and reporting back to us because the
two-year for Kaiwahine is coming pretty close. We're not very far, you know, and that's South
Maui, that's Mr. Couch's district, but still we approved it and we put that, that caveat in that twoyear, that condition. So those modifications, I don't want 'em get lost in the shuffle 'cause we
made these guys go through a bunch of hoops. I wanna make sure everybody else has. But I
wanna thank the Spencers for tolerating and, and really cooperating more than anything else with
the community, with this Council to bring forward what I call affordable housing for, like
Ms. Baisa said, the fire, the police, the ones who work at hotels that live in Napili and wish that
something up in Napili would happen like this, unfortunately it hasn't, but maybe one day we
can have somebody out in Napili do something like this or on West Maui, a true affordable
housing project on West Maui which is been long waited. I think the last time was Mahinahina.
That's the last one. And I was pretty young when that one went in. So, you know, it's been a
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long time and so I'm excited, you know, we put all these conditions. I, I, you know, I respect my
colleagues for which way they voted in different issues; however, I think this is going to be the
showcase of starting affordable housing. I think the only thing I wish we could do is put
restriction where it would stay affordable and not after 10 years or whatever, boom, they can be
sold at some.. .at fair market price, you know, that's, that's the only thing And even when I was
at the Waikapu Community Association and that was brought up, a lot of negativism came up
from people like why, why you guys allow this? We're tied. You know, if we do too much the
financial institutions fight us. If we do too little, then we, you know, we use taxpayers' money or
we give all these exemptions, which is taxpayers' money and then we lose out, you know. So
it's one of those do if I don't and damned if I did, you know, at this point in time, I think, you
know, I can support this, and I hope my colleagues support it. I think this is a first step and
hopefully we'll get more affordable housing coming in in the near future. Hopefully, Kulamalu
and all these other ones that we have put some big money now to do this affordable housing will
come to fruition. You know, I'm happy to say pretty soon in Sand Hills we'll have our first
affordable structure with tax credit and County money, you know, and I'm looking forward to
that, but you know, it's been looking forward for so long that I got a lot more gray hairs and few
more pounds and I'd like not to have that happen again. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Guzman followed by Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I also would like to echo the sentiments of my colleagues
as well as being so honored to be on this Council to pass forward a historical moment in
presenting 100 percent affordable housing by a private entity. I think it's something that all
parties interested worked together. It showed good legislation in terms of listening to the people
and the community, and the end result is helping working families with affordable homes, even
though there are some, some different interests on some of the Council's voted on. I, particular,
on the sidewalks and the pedestrian, bikeways, the end result is win-win and I'm very satisfied
and I commend the Spencers for going forward and having the right gumption to get this going
and look forward to future affordable housings. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Guzman. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I'll start off by saying I will be speaking in support of
your motion, but I do have one question I would like to be allowed to ask to the Director if you
would allow, Chairman?
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. You know, with Mr. Victorino's comment, I just wanna
do a quick follow-up because I thought Modification No. 5 that that is one of the ways we were
gonna address the continued affordability of units in the future. So would it be a
misunderstanding on the Committee's part this afternoon that Modification No. 5 will not
address the concern that I share with Mr. Victorino on maintaining affordability of the lots even
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upon the resales? You know, I was looking at Modification No. 5 where the second sentence
said, applicant shall resell the units at affordable prices within affordable housing restrictions.
CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation Counsel or Ms. Ridao, whoever wishes.
MR. UEOKA: Yeah, Mr. Chair, that typically...yeah, if the affordable housing restriction is not met
during the affordable period then it gets resold at affordable housing...housing prices, but if it's
passed the allotted time period then it can be sold at market prices.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that time period will be set in the Affordable Housing
Agreement?
MR. UEOKA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So that is still negotiable?
MR. UEOKA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Then I think you've heard some of the concerns of the Committee
about maintaining affordability upon even the resales, and that is I think something that you
should take into serious account as a directive from the Committee that that is a issue for us
maintaining affordability on the resales.
MR. UEOKA: Yeah, I think we understand. We'll look for guidance in the future.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Thank you very much. You know, Chairman, you
know, speaking against affordable housing especially 100 percent is like speaking against your
mother, and that is almost, I mean, that everyone who knows is a no-no. And so first, I am like
Mr. Victorino, you know, I cannot recall another 100 percent project of this nature. I mean,
we've had 51 percents, for maybe 70 percent, but 100 percent, you know, it's a rarity and I
appreciate this opportunity for us to make a decision this afternoon on it. And while I support it,
Chairman, I just wanna say that, again, like mothers and affordable housing, I still think though
well, it's important we still need to think about the policies that we set forth that gets impacted.
You know, we worked hard to create an Agricultural land policy and a sliding scale of how
Agricultural lots are to be subdivided in the future. Okay, we're giving an exemption here.
Under Chair Baisa we worked hard on General Plan and the language of a General Plan, the
Island Plan and here we are today, giving exemptions. And so I don't have a problem with like
use of exemptions to move forth certain things, but I spring out the point that exemptions
according to the timing and situation is worthy for consideration, and I hope that, you know,
when other parts of the plan come up for consideration that Council would continue to remember
that it's a plan and exemptions as we are gonna give today that's exempted from things that are
worthy for consideration, Chairman, and the plan is that, is exactly that, a plan. It's not set in
concrete and I just wanna make it clear today that this is what we're doing. We've given
exemptions to policies we have worked hard on to set up by Code, ordinance, resolutions, but we
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found this project worthy enough to consider it and more than likely will be granted. So you
know, to me, we just proving the point that even the plan is not set in stone. It can be modified
for proper consideration. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion to the motion on the floor? Before I call for the vote, I will
just say that I'd like to thank all the Members for their participation and all of the things that
Mr. Hokama brought and everybody else brought up, and the concerns, myself, and I'm sure,
Ms. Ridao will be considering all these when we have another one and we will attempt to address
these concerns so.. .because they are necessary. It's difficult, and some of them we might have
to address by referring to Committees but we will do everything we can, and I will call for the
question.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, one last comment?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, Mr. Hokama 9
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would ask for you to consider as our Chairman in the Committee
Report to consider placing language that, I would like us to consider putting and codifying the
standards particularly from this type of resolution. So there's someplace we can go and know we
can look at to find the specific standards and exemptions given to specific projects, because I
think it's gonna be helpful to multiple departments and potentially the Council itself as we move
forward, at least I think it's a better step forward, Chairman, and I would ask for your
consideration in the Committee Report to place language that that is something we might wanna
pursue and maybe even refer that subject to the more appropriate Committee. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sorry, Mr. Chair. You know, along with what Mr. Hokama said as far
as this process, I would also like to see if we can get some sort of communication back to our
State Legislature, give us a little more time to deal with this. We've had to rush this through.
Fortunately this was a really clean project. Didn't have much to change on it. We just had to
discuss it a little bit, but when it gets to be one that might be a little more controversial or not as
clean, we're up against it already. So, you know, we've said this before at Kaiwahine, we've
said this before at the Kahoma, can we send a letter to the State Legislature saying please give us
at least 60 days, but we would like 90 days, not this 45-day thing. I know we do it every time,
and I think if we keep beating at 'em they might finally back down, but this, fortunately for this
one, it was clean, but if it wasn't, we'd be going till late at night and all kinds of stuff and maybe
not getting it done to the detriment of maybe getting some good affordable housing. So thank
you.
CHAIR CARROLL: We will, we will do everything we can. Any further questions?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not so much a question, Mr. Chair, if you don't mind, I just
wanted one clarification, you know, I said Kahoma in my exuberance, exuberant manner, but
you gotta understand Kahoma was held up by the Land Use, State Land Use. They went and
said no, and ...(inaudible)... when they had to go through this whole rigamarole and then they
finally came back and said no, you were right in granting those exemptions. So you know,
sometimes, our worst enemy is the State and sometimes the Land Use, but that's another story.
But I don't wanna put Kaiwahine and Kahoma in the same sentence, you know, that's really two
different animals. Kaiwahine did not go through the same, same challenges. So, you know, I
apologize for that mistake 'cause I don't want the people at Kahoma development to feel bad
that, you know, I'm pointing them out 'cause it really wasn't all their fault.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. All those in favor of the motion on the floor, please
signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried, seven ayes, two excused, no noes.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair Guzman, and Councilmembers
Baisa, Couch, Hokama, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Cochran and Crivello.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: ADOPTION of revised resolution to approve with
modification the proposed project and FILING of the other
two proposed resolutions.

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we have come to the end of our agenda today. Thank you for your
patience. It's very difficult. As Mr. Couch has said we only have 45 days. The Chair has tried
for over 11 years to add 15 more days to that along with many, many other people, and we shall
continue to try to get that extra 15 days. Man, hopefully we will be successful sooner than later.
Again, thank you. Thank you to the applicant and all those who have participated in this meeting
in the Chamber and on television. With nothing further, this Land Use Committee meeting of
September 12, 2013 stands adjourned. . . . (gavel). . .
ADJOURN: 2:53 p.m.
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